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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Tha Trustess: of Comwall Education Learning Trust {CELT) presant their annual report, together with
the financial stalarments and awdilors repod of the charitable company Tor the year anded 31 August
2025

The Annual Raport sarves the purpose of both a Trusiess' Report and a Directors’ Repord under
Company Law

CELT operates a Mulll Academy Trust in the county of Comwall, and consists of 16 schools (5
secondary, 10 primary schools and 1 jundor school), ranging from pupllsfstudents aged 2 to 49 Its
soademies have @ combined capacily of 3576 pupilgsiudents and had a rall of 8619 in the school
cansus Chobober 2025,

Structure, Governance and Management

Constifution

The acsdemy fruet is @ compeny Bmied by guarantee and am exemnpt charfy. The chartable
company’s memaorandum and artices of assocsation are the primary govemning docurments af the ko
fcademy Trust. The Trustese of CELT are elso the Deecltors of the chantable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates a5 Cormwall Education Leaming Trust
and is alse known as CELT.

Detaf#s of the Trustess who served throwghout the pericd except as noled are incleded in the
Raferance and Administrative Detalls on page 1

Members® Liabilly

Each Member of the charitable company undartakes fo contribute 1o the assets of the company in the
avent of & baing wound up while they are a Member, or wilhin one year afler they cease o be a
hember, such amount &5 may be required, mol exceseding £10, for the debts and liabiliies confractad
bafore they ceasad to be & Member,

Trustess' Indemniies

The Multi Acaderry Trust throwgh its Articles has indemnified ts8 Trusteas to the lollest extbenl
permisshia by law. Curing the period the Myl Acadarmy Trusialso purchasad and maintasnad liability
insurance for its Trusleaes fo cover the Babllity, whech by vidue of amy rule of e would clberwise
atach to them in respect of any negligence, default, breach of trusl o breach of duly of which they
rmeay be guilty in redabon to the Mulli Academy Trust,

Wethod of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Trusiees ara appoinied subjecl o the aricles of associalion and subjecl o remaning eligible, any
person may be reappointed o re-slactad.

Fellowing a skills gap analysis the Trustees agres what skills, exparence and knowledge are nesdad
in Tresteas o fill any vacancies. The Trustess consider the bast methods of altracling a diverse rangs
of candidales such as local adverisement, specialisl recrutmenl agencias and use of govamar
armbassedors wilh the skills CELT nesds, Praferred candadates are idenlified and subjact to formal
varlling and approval by the full Board of Trustass
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Paollcles and procedures adopted for the induetfon and fraining of Trustees

The Execubive Leadership Team, Headteachers and schoaol Ssnior Leadership Teams, Clark 1o
Board, and colleagues on the Board of Trustees suppor fellow Trustess and provide them with
induction supported by mentoring from experienced Trusteos. A regular skills audd and . lermly
evaluation of Governance takes place which includes a raining needs analysis and the resulls of this
aid any CPD [Continuemg Professional Development} planming.

Organisational Struciure

CELT are responsible for ensuring thal high standards of corporate govemance are mainlained, Thay
exarcisa their powers and functons with B view 1o fulfilling & strategic leadership rods in the running of
the schools. The Board of Trusiees have established a Scheme of Delegabon for each school o
assisl with the discharge of thair responsibilfies

The Trust Lead is the Muii Academy Trusts Accounting Officer and with the suppor of the Executive
Leadership Team af the Multi Acadermy Trusi, & responsile for day-to-day managemend, the
operation of the currculum and execuling any sirategic decsions laken by the Board of Trustess, and
committees. The Trust Lead, aided by the Mulli Academy Trusls Depuly Trust Leads and other
Executive Leadership Team members, controls the schools at an executive level implamenting tha
pofciss laid down by the Trustees and reporting back 1o them.

Trusteas have a responsidily for determining, monitaring and keaping under review the policies,
plans and procedures within which the Mulli Academy Trust operates. The Board of Tristess ars
responsila for ensuring that the relevant statuiory documents are defivered to Companies House ina
timaly mannes, adminislanng the Mulll Acadamy Trusls finsnces and applymg the income and
progery only lor the purposes Sed oul in the Gowvarming Documents and participating = Trustees'
meetings. The Board of Trustees act within thelr powers as sat aut in the Companmy's Articles, and R
their capacity as Trustess of tha Multi Academy Trust, under Chaerity faw, accapl ulimats
responsdbdity for directing the affairs of the Multl Academy Trust ensuring that il s sclvent, wall-run
and dalivering the chartable outcomes for the benafil of the public for which f has hean seab up.

The Board of Trustees mat five fimes during the 224025 Academic year. The Finance, Sfaffing &
Remuneration Committea met a5 a full committes thres times, The Audit and Risk Committes met as
8 full commities three limes and there were further meetings between the Char of the Finance,
Staffeng & Pemuneraltion Commidties and officers of the Trust sis imes. The Chair of e Audit and
Risk Commitias mat thrae tmes, the Estates, 15 & Climate Emergency Committee met three Emes
and the Qualily Assurancs Cammitbes migd Tour fimas,

Pages 4



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Arrangenrents for selting pay and remuneralion of key management parsommel

CELT recognise thal we are accountable 1o our beneficiades, siakehalders, employess and the public
and are commilied 1o raising ransparency and accountability. We have a duly 1o deliver our services
effeclively ard maxmmise use of aur resourses and 1o do this we need to attract and retain suitably
quatified paople wilth the right skills, knowledge and experignce,

The pay of Hesdteachars, Heads of School and Deputy/sssistant Hesds are set according to the
headteacher range based an school group size, in accordance with School Teachers pay and
Conditichs document guidance. The pay of the Trust Lead is reviewed by Trusteas and benchmarsad
sgainsl salanas of other Trests of comparabla size and complexity bofh locally and nationally, Tha
Trusl Lead's parlormance managameant & undartaken by Trustees who have appomied an exiernal
advisor b supparl the process

VWhan setting salanes, we take into account the knowladge, skills, and expenance negded Tor he: job

and ‘market forces affecting recruitmant. We benchmark sgains! eveilable mformalion sech as
comparable rales baing adwvertised and benchmark against a range of our pesars.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Trade union faciiity time

Relevant union officlals

Humber of employees who were relevant Full-time equivalent employes numbar
unign officials during the relevant period

] a

Percentage of time spant on facility times

Parcantage of fime :—:p";:;;::
0% b
1%-50% 3

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility tima

2026
Pravide the 1otal cost of facility ime 7. EED
Pravide the 1otal pay b 52,986,698
Pravide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time, calculated as
itolal cost of facility tme J fotal pay bl x 100 0.0146%
Faid trade union activities

2025
Time spent on pald trade union activilles as a percentage of total paid facility ime
hicwrs caloudated &5 | tolal haurs spent on paid Irade union aclivities by relavant
urthan afficials durng the relevant peniod + todall paid facility time howrs ) 2 100 100

See Statutory Instrument 2017 Mo, 328, The Trade Union (Facilily Time Publication Reqguérements)
Rogulations 2017 for Caldulation detalls,

Fage &



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)
Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Related parlies:
See further details and disciosure N nole 26,

Connacted partles:

One Cormaall

Thea naticnal Teaching Schoal Hub programme has created a network of BY Teaching Schaod Hubs
{T5H} across Englard. In the widar South YWesl region wa have 11 designated TSHs, 2 in Cormwall.
The Roseland Academy ([East Cornwiall TSH) and Trenance Learming Academy (West Comwall and
the Iskes of Scilly) are the designated TSHs for Cormwall from. September 2021, The fwo Cornwall
hubs are working In partnerzhip as One Comwall

CELT works collaborsadively with One Cormaald 1o provide asccess for our schools 1o high quality
provision for:

= Initial Teachar Training

= Early Caraer Framawark

= Approprale Body services

+ Baformad NPDs

= CPD

Tha provision is open to all schoois and designed 10 mesl the spacific nesds of all our schools inall
areas, regardiess of phase, lype, s of location.

Kermow Englizh Hub

Until 31 December 2024, CELT's Trusi Lead was par of the stralegic govarnance group of lhe
English Hub, CELT has acoessed servicas from Kemow English Hub maludeng:

+ showcase evants, highlighling bast practice in phonics and early reading.

+ auditing of the quality of early language and reading provision in our schools,

+ funding 1o buy resources & iraining o support excellent leaching in early language and reading.

Nawgquay Sports & Community Cantre (NSCC)

NECCE (MDY Spords Lid) has worked in paringrship with Cormwall Edecation Learning Trusl and
provides & qualily Spor, Healln, Finess & Welibaing facility for the Newguay and area comminity,
students and stall, ST and a Trustes of CELT are membaers of the MECC Oversighl commifieoe,
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

St Austell Festival of Children's Literature

St Austell Festival of Children's Literstwre |5 8 celebration of reading ssmed @l developing a
eommunily that chooses o read for pleasurs, It recognises that "reading for pleasurs s The single
bigges! indicater of chidran's future succass.” (DECD 2022)

Many staff from CELT give thelr tme fo run evenls each monih that promote reading and this
culminatas in & festival held in June each year which includes a school day. In 2025 this anakbled
pupils from across CELT fo attend mauliple author events.

In order bo ensure the meaxmum impact with pupita the cost per child for each event B capped at £1,
including on the schoal day. This means thal pupils can experienca author visits for a fraction of thae
usuaAl cosl

Plymouth Marjon University

CELT has formed o parnarship with Marjon Univarsity Cormwall and Plymowth Magon Univarsity to
offer teacher treining and accredited courses in Comwall. This parmnership addresses regional
educetion needs o make teacher education more accessibis to all. A comeraione of this collabosation
is inikizl teacher iraming which providas pathways for prospective Primary end Secondary schoal
teachers in Cormveall allowing them to banefit from Marjon Teacher Educabion Parnership's extansive
160 year expenance whilst undertaking placements in a CELT echool and drawing on the expartise of
CELT siaff and mantors.

Falmouwth University

CELT & a franchise pariner of Falmouth Uiniversdy for the purposes of the Migher Education Dagran
courges offered at Bodmin College, Sthedents taking parl in these courses achieve a Faimouth
University qualfication and catificate and ars enrolisd &5 stiudents of Falimouth Unbeeraity but the
coursas are dalivarad at Bodmin Collage as per the terme of the partnership agraamant.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Engagement with employees (including disabled parsons)

Dawing the financial yvear 2024/25 the Jalint Consultation and Megobiation Commitles for the Trust mel
five times virually.

The purpose of the JOCNG was to introduce, masntain and develop arangemants aimed ar;

= providing amployess with information on meters of concam o hem

= consulling employees and their representatves regularly so that the views of employess can be
conskdered in making decisions which ara likely to affect their interesis

= angauraging the inwohemeant of employees in the Trest's perdormance

+ achieving & common awareness on lhe pard of all employvess of the factors affecting the
perfarmance of b Trusl,

A part of the: Trust's approach [ all polices affecting their stalf, & Jull writhen consullaion process is
undertaken with staff wig cwr JONG, Including relevant unlons, to ensure all have price opportumsdty o
ravieny, contribule and respond b0 policees that may affect them and ther colleagues prior o formal
approval, adoption and publication. We invite comments from recognized unions, allowing time far
further membarship consultation. All comments are reviewed, and & decision made o accept o nof; if
any comments wera not accaptad thay provided a rationale and than the final documents are issued,

During the year we have consulted with employeses on support siaff pay and a number of HR policies
as parl of the agreed schedula for policy reviaw.

In addiion. wirtual and face to face staff mestings were held at school sites and virluel Jfoint
Congsdlation and Megoliation Commiltes meelings took place with staff and  their slectsd
representatives. Open forums werg haid in ail primary schools across the year and drop n HR clinks
wiara regularly held in all secondary achoods

Additionally & whole Trest wallbaing survey was carried oud in Aprl 2025, the resulls of which are
being wsad to mform the Trust wellbeing strategy and has resufted i additional CPD baing offered
around wallbaing, managament skills and |leadership developmeant.

The Trusl's policy of applications for the amployment of disabled persons s covarad within our
Racruilrment Palicy and the Irealment of employeas who become disabled and their training, caresr
devalopmant and promation s covened inour egualily and diversity palicy.

Trusl and individual acadamyfschool managemant will seek to identify and act wpon any unfair or
unlawtul descrimination thal denes an individus opportunity on amy of the critaria, Existing stafl and
job applicants hawe the right to complain about undawful discrimination through the appropriate
procedures which are set out in the Complaints/slleged Breaches saction of the policy,

Aciive sleps will be taken 1o engure thal the policy is implemaented and regularly reviewsd, and the
Trest and individual academy/schoc! management will:

« maka e best possibie use of skills, kalenie and akilities of all staff; and

= damongirale commalment (o equal cpportunities initialhes.

Whilst the emphasis in the policy s on tha fair and equal freatment of all staff, tha prnciple of creating

an anvironment wivch aliminates discrimination applies equally 1o the reatment of sludents, Trusteas,
suppliars and other people who have contact with the TrusL,
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Cormmwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Emgagement with suppliers, custoimers and ofhers fn & business relationship with the
academy frust

GCELT has comtinued ta bulld relationships with key suppllers and has pald supplier invosces as
prarmiplly a5 possible in order to protect thedr cash flow.

The payment practices return for September 2024 - Februany 2025 submitted as part of our bi:annual
redurn, showad the following results: -

Invoices paid

1-30 days 82%

31-60 days 6%

G180 days 2%

Aversge number of days invoices ang paid 14 dayg.

Tha Paymanl Practices retumn for March - Sugust 2025 showad tha follewing resolis: -

Inwalces pald

1-30 days 04%

11-60 days 4%

§1-00 days 2%

Avarage number of days imicas ars paid 13 days

Pupil voice was heard diracty through individual school councils and pupll Surseys.

Objactives and Activities

Objects and Aims

CELTs principal objec, @5 per ils artiches of association, is o advance For the public benefit aducation
in the Uniled Kingdom. In particular by establishing, maintaining, carmying on and managing and
developing acadermias which shall offer a broad and balancad curriculum,

The secondary abject of the Trust is to promate for the benefit of the local communithes in which the
academies ara established the provision of faciliies for recreation or other leisure time occupabion in
Ihe interests of social walfare with 1he objective of improving the conditions of life of the inhabitants.

In pursuance of these abjects our CELT strategic goals are:

1) EMPOWER and grow owr people to suppont, teach and bead

2] COLLABORATE o create an ami#licas and inclusive &l throwgh educational entiiement
3) Forge EXCEPTIONAL relationanips wilh the communities we serve

4) TRANSFORM provision thraugh enhanced partnerships

51 LEAD an affaciiva, innovative and athical organisation

Cur misslon & 16 pravide every leamers with an Exceptional Educabonal Expanencs and we liva our
mission thraugh averything we do, with a mindset of 100%.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Obyjectives, Stralegies and Activities
Three Trust wide pricrifies ware agraed for 2024725

1) Curriculum alignmand in all phases

There has been gignificant progress In this area with Dirgclors of Primary and Secondary phases
eppomied during the year alomg with Trust Disecloss of sach subject, The Trust held a Leaming &
Teaching Conference bringing logether leaders from across the Trust 1o shape the developmaent of a
CELT-wica Loarning & Teaching Framawork which wil undaerpin the delvery of an aSgned curricuium,
The InSYMC project wes launched ab Secondary level 1o being a8 schools logether to deliver Dest
practice across the curicadum with progress also made In the Primary phase, for exampla the
infreduction of the 'Opening Werlds™ humanitiss curticulen across the Trust, INSET days were also
used lo bring logether colleaguees across the Trust for subject or phase spacific sessions bo shara
ideas and leam logether, This areda conlinueas (o be a profity for the Trust as outlined in plans far
future parinds.

2) Aftendanos

In recognétion of the importance of this area @ CELT Diractor of Inclusion was appointed during the
year along with sanior altendance officers In some achools. Attendance figures for 202425 improved
and continue io be above national average in Primaries but fall below this fargel in Secondaries
Attendance and belonging continues to be a focus for the Trust with an Inclusion Team now In
aperation for 202526,

3) Financial stability, mainty staffing costs at T6% or lower of GAG

Wihilgd It & difficull 1o lower stafl costs In-year, addilional staffing KPls have been added to budget
aefling repons and discussed o budged setling meelings o bring baler visibility 1o this area for
decigion makers g3 well 53 baing Included o monthly managament reparting, As part of a reviee of
slaff costs tha high parcantage of teaching staff abova threshald in some schools was dentified as a
contributary factor which has led to this also being momitored as a KPL. Changes o budgetary conirods
over siaffing have also bean made with more decisions being faken cenirally by the Execulive
Leadership Team who are able o take a wider view of staffing across the Trust and identify potential
efficiancies. As a rasult of this focus the majonty of schools are now buedgsted In line with this tangst
for 2025528,

Public Benefir

Tha Tresteas confirm that they have complied with the duty in Secton 17(5) of the Chanties Act 2011
10 have dua regard 1o tha public benefil guidance provided by the Charily Commission in selting our
opeclivies and planining our aclivibes. The Koy public benefit delivered by the Mull Academy Trust is
the provision of education along with 1he peovision of recriation facilibes as sel out in the charitabla
obsects of tha Trust.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees® Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Strateglc Report
Achisvemanis and Performance
Leamer count by year group
Vaai N R 1 ] i ] [ 7 ] ] W 1 iF W | Tmm
Lammam | 19 | 244 | 258 |’H~I- F0 | Wom | 423 | auc |Toe2f T2M| LA | 18T [ 1928 | 10 | i@ | e
Leamer conlext
Al Laarnars Eﬂ I
Femats 455
Fraa Schoal Meaks Ever b 25
SEN Suppodt 16%:
SEN EHC Plan 3.4%
Leamer Afendance 2024725
Primary Secondany
CELT Mational CELT Matiana
All Puplla 85 T% 94 5% Ol 4% 91 4%
Female e, 7% T 9 1%
Wale B5.7 % 54 4% B0 4% 91 T%
Free Schools Meals Ever & 54 1% 2 1% G 2% a6 %
SEM Suppot 04 0% 92 8% B5.7% 35 %%
SEMN EHC Plan 81.2% B9.0% To4% 80.9%

¥hils1 attendance in the Primary phasa was again largaly abowa Mafienal average. the Trust did not

meel this farget st Secondary bevel for any key leamer group. Altendance remains a kay pricrity for

fubure yaars

Learnes Exclusians/Suspensians 2024725

Suspenslons Laarnars Sﬁaﬂ@" Parmanent Excluslons
Primary 40
Sacondary 1.410 441 1

The Trust aims to minimise suspensions and axclusions as oullined in the School Behaviewr Policies
In-both the primary and secondary phases, whilst the number of suspensions rose sightly in 2024/25,
thie mumbar of different [marners who were suspended, decreased 80% of the suspensions came from
just 2 schaals within the trust. whare behavicur and culture are high on their list of pharities for 200526
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Cormwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Early Years Foundatlon Stage Profile — Achleving the Good Level of Development

CELT National (2024}
Al Leamers TH% 60 %
Female Ta% TES,
I ake 4% 61%
Disadvantaged 5t 52%
Year 1 Phaonécs - Expected Standard
~ CELT Mational !Eﬂi
Al Laamars % 0
Female 0% 24%
I ale W% TT%
Dizadvaniaged 9% BE%
Year 4 Multiplication Table Check = Average Score
Averaga Scora Achiaved Full Marks
CELT Mational [2024) ELT Mational (2024)
All Learmers 220 206 43% 3%
Femala 21.8 20.4 12% 12%
Male 22.0 20.9 45% 35%
Dizadvantaged 203 18.9 25% 25%
Hey Stage 2 Expected Standard
CELT Matlonal {2024}
Cambined Combined
Reading | Writing | Maths (R Feading "._l'n'_l:.rﬂng MMaths (RWM]
All Learmers T6% TE% T8% 5.3% T4% T2% T3% B1%
Farmala T4% 82% T3% £2% T8% T8% T3% 64%
Madi= TE% % 83% 65'% T1% B5% T4% ET%
Disadvantaged | 66% Bl 63% 48% Bd% 5% 59% 5%

CELT keamers in the Primary phase largely achieved abowve natlonal average for all key matrics in all
statutory aasessments. There was a strong improvement in EYFSP outcomes to put the GLD outcome
wall above national this included an encouraging rse in the outcomes for disadvantaged leamears
Phonics resulls remain incredibly high across the trust. Whilst there has been a plateau with the frust
figures for the Year 4 MTC. they remain well above naticnal {simillar to phonics ). At the end of KS2 whilst
most measures remain abave national, they are often only marginaly 5o,
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Key Stage 4 Headlines (DME Weaghting)

CELT Maficral - State-funded mainstream
Aftainme | Basics | Basics | EMlening | Afanme | Baskcs | Basics
85 | 94 | EBacc | ni@ a5
Al Laamers 75 5% BT% 4% 45.9 6% B5%
Fernale 19E 2% BE% 51% 45.2 5% BE%
Mzl (%] 4% % % 437 % Bi%
__Disacvantaged | 354 2 A% 3% 3.5 265 A%

in 2025 and in 2026 there are no progress measures (due o these cohorts not laking Key Slage 2
tests). Whitst the infake across the trust is normally slighty below national averages when |ooking at
their K52 tast results. it is encouraging that most attsinment outcomes at the end of Key Stage 4 are
slightly aboye national, All headling atlainment maasuras improved across the trusl thanks largaly o
some karge improvemants from Bodmin and Poltair, Although results for our disadvantaged learners
ara above thair pears nationally, therm is sill a gap babween tham and cther learmars within the trust,
which is still high on the trest's agenda.

Whitst In previous (and fulure) years we have focussed on performing in line with FFT20 (top 20% of
gchoals in the country when looking al progress rates), this is mol possible for this year and next, so
Wi hiave had key Tecus on raising the atasmant at each schoal 1o do e best wa possibly can Tor aur
loamars,

Ky Stage 5 Average Painks per Enlry
CELT Hational (2024
A Lavel 5.0 () 356 (B-)
Academic B Cr) 357 (B
 Appied General 31,7 (D) 75.2 (Warll]
Tech Loveks 4010 mhsr-) 281 (kharit+)

CELT leamers achieved slightly below naticnal average In A Level and academic coursas, agains
2024 figures but far excesded national aversge for applied general and tech lavels. Kay stags &
prograss measures will nol be known'published untl Spring 20256, bul wa expect it 1o ba broady
in-lima with national around academic qualifications and wall-above for vacational.

Ofated Inspections

2024725 was another strong year for Ofsied parformance at the Trust

Panrce Academy was inspacied during the year with all areas judged o be "Talstanding, along wilh
Mowunt Charles whare 1 area was judged o be 'Good with all others ‘Oulstanding’. Bodmin College
was alse megscted in the sary part of 202425 with 2 oul of 4 areas now judgsd ta bs 'Good” and tha
remainder continuing 1o be ‘Raguires Improvemaent’

Oither &chisvernents
Our ECT programmao cantinues & b aur mast pnpular and succassiul roule inka Iuathing. Retentian

of ECTs remains strong, with a 87% ratantion rate = 202425, which is significantly abowe the national
piciure and demonsieates e strenglh of Sur indwetion and mentonng cullung,
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

This year also marked the start of the CELT/Marjon ITT programma, Eighl trainees (five primary and
thres gecondary) completad thelr training acrogs the rust, all of whom graduated successiully. We are
proud thal byo bave been appointed as ECTs wihin CELT, tonfribading to o long-term recruitment
ard retention aims, Bailding on this success, 20 ITTs have been recruiled for Septambser 2025, which
will furthar enhance o provision and strangihen succassion plaming in the vears ahead,

In sddition, CELT has been appointed as the Lead Parrer for the Ambition Institete ITT programme in
the South Wesl From Seplember 2025, we will supgon five traines feachers in pasnership with Weasd
Coundry Schools, furber extending our roke in shaping the nexlt genaration of teachers across the
FEsgian.

The year has also saen the infroduction of The Mational Collage acrass CELT, which will ke fully
implamented  Irom Autumn 2025, This providas siaff with a wide range of on-demand CPD
oppartunities, enabling flexibde, self-girected learming and supporting the development of new skills
acroas all roles.

Additionally, we have seen Steplab furher embedded across several schools his yeas, with staff
using the platform to struciure coaching conversations, capture professional development goals, and
share best practice. From September 2025, Staplab il be rolled out across all CELT schoots,
creating & consistant, trust-wide approach to mstrectional cosching. This is an impodant sieg in
building & culture where professional growth s contmuous, fesdback is constrective, and staff at all
slages e supported o improve their practce.

Launched im Juby 2025 we have also established a Learning and Development Stearing Group, madse
up of 50 colleagues rom across the organisation, Meeling once per half term, the group provides
réat-lime Teedback and insight o prolessions] lestrng intslives, ensuning bal siafl wice direclly
informa the way we design and deliver CPD.
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Key Perdermance Indicators

Financial KPI's

The principal financial KP's measured and mpored at Trost el ane:

= Ravenue surplusddeficit)

= Eevanue variance to budget

= Siaff costs as % of incoma

¢ Taaching stalf costs as % of ofal staffing
r Teaching staff costs as %% of Income

* Suppot stafl costs as %o of Income

Targets are in place for the first 3 of these KPIs which are cofour coded and reported to Trustees on a
manthly basis in support of the Trust objective 1o attain financial stability, As funding is based on pupll
numbers this is also @ KPPl which is monitored and reporbed on, & summary of the data for this s
inciuded above under achisvemants and performance,

The bBaelow tables have besn exbracted from year end managemant accounts. They therefore do not
racancile with the final statutory aceounis. The reguils for the vear are ag follows:

o E‘ i |
!!I -

:

5

=)
| A1
T

B
)

"

1£79.168)
]
5,180
15,629
17S

=
=

3|5|81215| 213|212 5|2 3| 2|27 B|&)

i

A5 evidenced by the above table the majority of schools wera rated green for both revenue result and
varance o budget with &n overall surplus and underspand fo budget achieved.
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Farecast expendiiung within income recoived

Farecas] expenditiane nhove income recaived

Farecast expenditune nore than 2% atove mcome recened

Foresas! to stay within cumam budge

Forecast to over spend current budsst

J = Staf costs as % of income

‘Within recommended range of 1% - P6%

Bielow recommended range of 73% - T6%

Abowe recommended range o 73% - 7B
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Stall ensts &5 a %% of Income were above target both across the Trust and in 8 schools, with 2 schoals
below and only 3 mesting tha farget. This KPI has teen used to inform discussions with schoo! and
phase leaders when sefting budgets for 2025/26 and beyond

Mon-Financial KPT's
CELT monitors & range of educational and non-sducational KPS linked 1o our sirafegic goals.

1} EMPOWER amd grow our peogle to suppor, teach and lead:

= [mproved staff retention rates across all roles

= |ncreasaed stalf satisfaction mefrics in annual Surveys

= Careswth IR imlermal promotions and successkon rates

» Enhanced pariclpation in profess|onel developmeant opportunities
+ Reduction in staff absance duae bo stress or warkload

* |mcreased applications for posts al all levels

2} COLLABORATE fo craals an ambitisus and inclusive ail- through educationad entifement
= Yaar-on-year improvemant n acklamic culcomas al all Key stages

* Reducton in attainmaent gaps belwesn disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged leamears

+ ncreased percantage of schools rated Good or Outstanding by Ofsted

= Improved reading ages across all year groups

= Enfsnced progression ta ambibous destinations post-16 and post-18

+ ncrapsad paricipation in wider curriculurm opporunilies

3 Forge EXCEPTHOMAL ralationships with the communities we sane
= Increased parental engagement matrics across all schools

= Growlh in communily use of schaol fcilitbes

= Expanded range of services accessible through school sites

» Improvad atendance and reducad persistent absence

+ Increased participation in holiday provision programs

» Strangihened partnerships with key community organisations

4) TRANSFORM provigion throwsh anhanced partnaerships

= Growlh In early yvears and specialist provision

= Increased number of strategic parinerships with measurable impact
+ Enhanced fransificn medrics al key educational phases

« Increased paricipaton in communliy leadership indiatives

= Growth in extermnal funding secured through parinenships

51 LEAD an effeciiva, innovalive and elhical arganasation

« Sirong fnanciad haalth metrics scross all schools

» Incressed proportion of funding dirscted 1o teaching and iaming
= Growth in non-GAG income as percentage of total trust income

* Positive governance reviews and feedback

* Improved opaerational efficlency metrics

+ Enhancad dgifal Infrastruchure utifisation

During the 2024/25 academic year our Data and Insights team have been working io develop
dashbaards which report on a number of these measuwres to enable School and Truet Leaders, as wel
as Trusless ko easlly monlbor progression against the indicators. Schodl and Sérvice Leaders also
report regularly on these to the relevant board committeas. Analysis of our performance in several of
these areas is included in the Achievernanis and Performance saction above
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Golrg Concann

The Trustees are required lo assess whethar the use of the going concern statement for CELT s
appropriate.de. whether there are any materal uncerainbes reialing o events or conditions thal may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust 1o conlinug as a going concern. The Trustees make
this assessmant n respact of a period of at least ang year from the date of the awthorisation of the
financial statamants Bnd have concluded that the Trust has adeqguate resources and cash to continwe
in operational exstance for the foresesable fulure and there are mo malerdal unceralnties aboul e
Trusts ability to cantinue &5 a going concarn, For this reason, it confinues fo adept tha: gaing concern
basis in preparnng the financial staternents. Further detasils regarding the adopbon of the going
concern basis can ba found inthe Stabemant of Accounting Policies.

In making this assesemeant he Trusiess congider e buddgel posilion for e naxl acsiomio yoear and
bayond. At each Trustes's meeting the following are distributed for considenaticn:

» Cashflow [Gracast for thae financial yaar

+ Budgat monitoring reports for sach school

= Balance sheel position

* Orafl 3 year budget for each school

The Truslees recaive these reports at least s fimes 8 year, and the Chair of the Board, Finance
Chair-and Awdit Chair recaived lhese mports monthly to assess and make carain that the Trust has
anowgh funds 1o swppart the aperations redquired by all the schaals o provide the besi lBaching and
lsarming possibée, The information provided includes the forecast lavel of reseree for the and of the
finaneial year and foliowing vears 1 ensure compliance with the Trusl reservas policy can be
monitored, Each school is only pamitted to budget from within their funding received each year
Schocla are permited o recueat addional funding for one off projects and capital contributions o
S8 projects.

For 2026027 the financia! position for most schools within CELT sequines some work to ansure aach
schobl can set within the funding receved. Schools whare slaffing = sagnificantly abovs the Trust
Eargal have besn identified for increased scnding during the buedget safling process with the Data &
Ingights Team and Finance Team working alongsida School and Phasa Leadars to ansume thal our
grialest assel, peopla, arge Baing wsed effeciely and afliciently, Graater harmonisation of currizulum
and pedagogy means that staff can more easily be redistributed across the Trust whers needed, and
an Increased foous on Integrated Curmiodum Fmancial Planning wil aso ad decision making o
ansura thal a balanced budgel can be set. Tha Trust is also in 8 strong poeition in temms of mservas
hedd and thus remiins confident thal 1wl remain a auing concoam rough 202627 and bayand
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Promating the success of (he company

Saction 172(1) of the Companies Acl 2006 requires tha Trustees o act i the way hey congadar, in
genckd faith, would B mos likaly 1o promobe ha success of Ihe chasly o sohieve s charifabie
purposes, The Scl siales that @ daing 20, the Trustess must ke regard lo

a) The likely consequences of any decision i the leng term — Trestess have conslderad in depth the
sirategic development of CELT fo ensure the long-term bensafits for the schoods within the Trust and
thwy widar community. The potesfial mpact in the shorl, medium and long term of eveny decision is
discussed before reaching a conclusion along with the effect on the long-term sustainabllity of the
Trust.

b} The interesls of the company's amploysas — Along with our lgarmers and schools our ST are al
the heart of all wa do and the Trugl seeks o activaly consider wellbeing and address concems
pramptly whers they ariss. As key stakeholdars in the organisation aur engagament with amployess is
outlined i the relevant section above, In addition to the regulsr conswltations with staff discussed, all
ernpiayess have access o an employes assistance programme 1o ensure there are clear roules o
support for both physical and mental hegith challengas.

c) The nesd to foster the company’s business relationships with sepphers, customers and others -
The Trust maintains a robust mechanism for ensuring communication with supghers and cuslomers s
open, framsparen] and effiviend, o ansure reliable and unambigucas relalionships are maintained, The
Trust monitors its payment peactices and B datermdned o ensure all suppliers ara paid within
raasonable limescales, nommadly 30 days as a maximum, and condfinually looks al ways o improve
procassses,

d} The impact of the company's operations on the commuoenity and the environmeni — Tha Trust
oparatas a Cimale Emergancy committaa which meels regulady and has defined goals and priorfias
which &t as key drive Iindicators for investmenl in the Trust estata. Environmeantal issues are also
covared in the curmculum across all phases as wall as being par of the evanwday sxpernence of
students, for exampie throwugh the use of recycling bens in classrooms and common spaces. Many
Trust facilibes are available for wse by the community i pursuance of our sacondary chadiable obic.

g} The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high skandards of business condust -
Falaining a slong rack record in educational performance = critical 1o he Trust, as well a5 recaiving
the best possible ouicomes in OFSTED mepeckons. Being an effeclive, inmovalive and sthical
organisation is one of the Trust's strabegic goals, with our valess baing al e forefront of recraiirmant,
trainimg, procurement and other key areas which help to maintain the high standards the Trust seis for
itaail,

f) The need io act fairly a= babwaen members of the company - &l Trusiees are invitsd 1o padicipals
fully I the active governance of the Trust with all Members and Trustess given the opportunity to
develop their skills and knowiedge. Clearly defined Terms of Reference ara annually approved for all
committess, including a minimum numbsar of reprasentatives for meslings 1o be deamed quorate, and
chairmanszhip of committes meatings is nat limited to one or beo individual Trustees
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Financial Reviaw

The Trust's principal source of income s grant funding received from the Department for Education
which is reslricted for specific purposes as 52l oul in the Restricied Funds note of these accounts.
The Trusl received £62 885 55T (2024 £60,078,023} revenue funding from the OFE during 2024025
with 1ofal restricied income received in yaar of £56,178,312. Expenditure 1otalled £67,25%9,130 befora
ransters, giving a deficit £1,080,818 on resiricted funds. Overall movement on resfricted funds,
gxcluding the pension resersa, was a surplus of E161,420, The Trust made s surplus of £3,404,931
before transfers in unrestricted funds, the principle sources of income were catering, lettings,
wraparound cara and opbonal bhips.

The Muli Acadamy Trust spent E13,878 337 (2024 £5172 656) on fixed assets, primarly investing in
WC refurbishments and reinsfatement costs at Woods Browning Industisl estate (Bodmin College):
raplacing the walar main and boier replacemant works (Si Mewan), replacement of fwe alarm
[Penrce), DT refurbishmant, venlitalion upgradaes, boiler raplacement and health and safely works
{Newmuay Tretharras) along weih IT upgrades at Bodmin College, Branns! School, Penrice Academy,
Poltair School and Mewquay Tretharras. Works to the Music Block af Tretherras were also completed
during the year

CELT held fund balances al 31 August 2025 of E124 813,077 (2024: E114,300,491) comprising
E118,731 968 (2024; £109,823 383 of restricted fixed assel funds, E700,246 (2024 £538,817) of
restricted funds, E4, 180,862 (2024 £3 938 202} of unrestricied funds and a pension reserve deficil of
EMIl {2024: EMil}, The pension fund i in a surplus with a closing balance of £9,711,000 (2024;
£1,534 000} The Trusi has recogalssd an assef celling adjiustrment of E9 711,000 (3024 £1 534 _000)
and a nel balance of EMIl (2024: ENd) in the financial ststements. Cash at bank and in hand was
£5. 425470 (2024: E8,281,372).

Reserves Policy

The Board of Trustess raviewed the Reserves Policy in March 2025 and agreed to pool resenes at
tha end of sach financial year, The Trust has agreed a targei of & minimum of 5% of GAG income fo
b= held i centrally pocded reserves (free resenses), in addibon o any designaled mesenes as agread
with the Execulive Leadership Team {ELT} This level of reserves is desmed appropriate to allow
flescbility if, for excamphs, urgert premises works are required. All projects which draw on the resarves
within the year musl be signed off by The Accounding Dficer, Deputy Trust Lead, Chief Financial &
Crperations Officer and i over £20,000 musl ba agresd by the Finance Commiliea,

Designated reserves al the year end are 1,500,000 comprising 750,000 designated for renawal of
the asiro pilch facilities at several sies, and £750 000 for the addidon of a new science block al
Fanrice Acadamy.

Centrally pocled reserves less Ihose designated wers E3,2Z8405 as al 31 Awgust 2025, which
regrasants B8.2% of GAG. This excesds the 5% minimum target sat by the Trust Resenres Policy.
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investmen! Pollcy

The Trugiees delegate the day-to-day responalbdity of managing and Implementing inveatmants to tha
Caputy Trust Lead and the Chiel Financial & Operations Officer, A review of day-to-day activitea must
first b carried out to ensure the Trust has enough liquidity g0 maintaim their daily duties. The Deputy
Trust Lead and Chief Financial & Operaticns Officer should then dentify & level of funds that can be
placad on depesit to generaie edditional interest income for the Trest in arder to support its on-going
charftable objectves

The Trust can only mvest furds in low-risk sccounts and be placed with banking instituticns that ars
ragulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and with good credit ratings. The investments can ba
made using a mixbere of the fﬂllﬂ-‘#iﬂg AcCounis:

= gvamight (Inslant acceseleagy BCCASs)

* nolice accounts (32 days — 100 days)
= fixed termn deposits |3 monthe — 12 montha)
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FPrinciple Risks and uncertainiies

The Trustees have conslidered and reviewed the maior risks and uncedaintias facéng the Trust and
have (dentified the following as the principal risks based on their Risk Rating combining impact with
prataahilityg:

= Failure of the Trust and indvidual schoots to enswre the keghest Safeguarding standards - including
'‘Everyona’s imviled'

= & gchood fads OFSTED or does not achieve its expeciad grade

= That the prevailing culiune becomes complacent rather than chalenging: that change 1= seen a3 8
dastinatian, not 3 journay and tharefore that appropriata action o challenge-undar performances is not
faken with pace and urgency

* Thal these is not a clear, coharent and congruent 51 strategy which means that leaders and schools
are ol awans of tha cumant position In terms of sk and pedarmance and therefore are not Impeoving
the schoal

= High levels of stall Baving the Trusl causes disruplion and also in a market wilh reducing supply of
staff, recruitment and replacerrent becomes coslly, challanging and laden with risk to defeny

= Lack of financial stratepic planning leawves the Trest vulnarable io extemal change factors and could
lzad 1o poor decisions in expanditure

+ That the lavals of resarves or availabifily of cash diminish meaning thal the Trusl cannol service
axpandiura

+ Failure 1o uphold tha key aspacts of bofh the Charitable Objecltive and Malan Prncplas lsads 1o
operational reputational fallura

+ & skifls gap or kack of expertise could lead 1o a lack of robust chaBenge and tharefore a lack of focus
ot Gore Dusindss

Financial risk management

Thie Audit and Risk Committes is the foowus poind far senaling In the Trust and regularly rewvsews the risk
regestar along with avalualing the affecliveness of systems which have baen implemantsd 1o monior
and minimise the idantfied risks, Mifigafions for the risks detailed above nclude:

« Robus! policies. Trabnkng and CPD of all staff. internal inspections, Regular revienw of progress with
issues identifiod

+ Significant focus on sharpening G4 focus In last 2 years with robist self-avaluation and action
planning. Assessmeant has bean accurata In vast magonity of Ofsted inspectione and has friangulated
the afficacy of Exgtidive avalualion,

» Myriad opportunites are valuable and proscribed by leaders o ensure we have congruence 1o owr
&N culbera! framawark; this s bassd on optimism, radical candour, psychological safely and
high-perorming teams. We have undariaken significant development of leadsrship and hava crested
the CELT Cenire of Excellancea to codify our approaches,

= A chear CELT 31 Theory of Action, framework, monitaring &nd repoarting cycle have been developad
fo ensure thal we have iriangulation at all levels of parformance and hawva axdemad validation of
intemal udgemeants through working with secior pariness on Insight days

* Improvements io endifernent with my Development and additionally with the cpportonities offered for
development and CPD, we have formed a comprehensive stall retention plan. For 25726 we are
saning o relalively small churn in stalf (however this may be due 1o the effects of economic instability
rathes than a positive endorsement of the Trest)

» There am robusl syastems In place on financial accountabilily thal allow both wisibility and
fransparancy and decision making as well as Q4 from thae Board, However, funding remainsg
aextremely challenging and when combined with demographic shifts, represents significant threat to
the succass end survival of the Trust
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+ We have developed much clearsr protocols for the allocation of staffing and have an appstite o
ansurg that salfng across tha Trusl is between TE-TEY of recumrring incoma. We have developed an
approach fo limetable, budgsting and projections which is moss joined-up

+ Budge! scrutiny has been in place for all schools that are not in balance and we heve undertaken
significant HR achens in primary and sacondary bo ensure that we are stucturally robust and efficient.
Declining ralls present & pressing issue on mcomae and viabdily;, so oo the nead to have invasted fo
rapidly improve e finning  and  impeovemenl of schools  historically  f0 maest acéountability
expectalions

* External and Intemal sudd, Govemmance reviews, appropnate commiftes structures, &
rsk-identfication and mitigation approach, a siralegic position

* Mempars approve the sppointment of Trustees and ensure thal there (8 8 brosd and balanced
skillzat. Regular members meslings are thers o fest the depth and breadih of Board operation
through sending of minutas, line leadership of the COT and wider azsuranca

Fundraising
CELT generates the majonty of is funds throwgh grant application and allocation,

Individual Parent Teacher Associations associated with each of CELT's schools have generated
restricted funds for namead schools by carning out & range of evenis to suit individual scademy needs,
thesa avents have besn supporied by staff, parent and community voluniesrs. &ny costs associated
with thase activibes sit outsida the remdt of tha Truat's oparational acsounts althaugh profils generaled
by aach PTA are donated to tha ralevant echool sites and treated as restricted incomea in the
accounts, Olher charifable fund raising is undertaken via various staff and other studsnt groups withdn
Individual schaols as part of sach school's wider community and social engagemenl. This fund raising
is for other external char@able bodies and monies generpted ang simply transered o the faleeant
body.

We do not carry owl sireei fundraising, nor do we wnderake fundralsing maild shots or ebephons
canvassing. We do not work with, or have oversight of, any commercial participalors or prafessional
fundraisers. Wa do ensure fundraising on our behelf conforma to recognised standards. YWe manitar
and respond 1o any complainks as defailed in our complaints policy (no complsints relating 1o
fundraisng were réceived during the year 202425). CELT always seek to safeguarnd and profect the
public, mcluding vufnerable peopls, from enreasonably intrusive or persistent fumdraising approaches,
ard undue pressure to donats.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

LUK energy use and assoclated greenhouse gas emisslons

Annual anergy usage and associaled annual greenhouse gas "GHGE') emissions are reporiad
pursuant 16 the Companies (Direclors' Repar) and Lmited Liab#ty Parinerships (Energy and Carben
Repor) Regulations 2013 {he 20768 Regulations™} thal came into force 150 April 2019

Organisational boundary

In accordanca with the 2018 Regulabons, the energy use and assocated gresnhouse gas amissions
are for those assels owned of operaled within the UK only as defined by the operational control
boundary. Thia includes all sixieen schools controlled during the regoding period and minibuses along
with the mandatory inclusion of scops three businass travel in employes-owned or hire vehicles [grey
Niaat),

Reporting period
The annual reparting period is 151 Seplember to 318t August sach year and the energy and carbon
emissions are abgned Lo this period

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:

The 2019 UK Gowernment Environmental Reporting Guikdelings and the GHG Protocol Corporals
Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) were folowed. The 2024 UK Govarmment GHE
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting were wsad in emission calculaions, The repor has beaen
revigwed Independandly by Zarargl Limited (trading as Briss Congulting Emnginaers Limitad),

The elecinicily, gas and od consurmption were compded from mvoice records. Wheare mvoices did not
cover e Tull reparting year, the pro-rata astismalion techaigua was appliad. Mileage claims ware used
fo calculate energy use and emissions associated with prey fleel. Generally gross calonfc values
were usad except for grey fleet mileage energy caloudaetions as per Government GHGE Conversion
Factors.,

The associated emissions are divided into mandatory and voluntary emissions according o the 2018
Regulations, then further divided into the direct combustion of fusls and the operation of facilities
{scopa 1), indirect emissions from purchesed slecincily {scops 2) and furthser indirect emissions that
oocur becausa of Trust activities but occur from sowrcas not owned or controlled by the arganization
{scope 3).
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reparting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the paried 2025 2024
01 September 2024 to 31 August 2025

Enargy consumption used 1o calculate emissicns (kKWh) 8,050,009 7515 815
Energy consumption break down {(kWh)

5as 3958124 4,182,264
Eleciricity 31392343 2,889,189
Transport fusd 347,037 244 859
Buming oil 358 506 208,483
Scope 1 emissions in matric tonnes CO2a

Chwnigd Iranspon B2.9 4217
Gas & oll consumption a4 BT B21.97
Total scopa 1 SET.TH BE4.14
Scope 2 emissions in matric tonnes CO2a

Purchassed steciriciby 47760 G008
Scope 3 emisslons In metrle tonnes CO2e

Business fraval in employes-ownad vehicles 14 56 18,58
Total gross emissions in metric tonnas COZe 1379.93 148294
Intensity ratio

Tonnes CO28 par pupd 0,16 0,16
Intensity measurameant

The intensily rabo is kolal gross emessions mo metric fonnes CO2e per pupll, which is the
recommended ratio for he seclor for consistency and comparabtility. Pupil numbers are based on the
Aiturmn 2024 Census and ndude rurseny enralmend

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency
In the reporting pericd the Trust has laken the following energy efficiency aclions:

= Lighting upgrades at Brannel - further replacements of compact flucrescent lighting fo LED in one
wing of the schoal

= Replacemsnt gas boilers with improved efficiency at Mewquay Tretherras, S1 Mewan Community
Primary Schoa! and Carclaze Community Primary Schoal

These aclions focus on improving healing control, upgrading lighting, and enhancing energy
gemsaration and heatng systams 1o reduce oyaradl energy use and increase afficiency.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees® Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Pians for Future Periods

The Trusi wil confinue o stive 1o daliver our mission of providing an Exceptional Educational
Expaniance to 100% of leamers and will work iowards achieving our 5 siralegic goals as outlined
pravicusly, Spedfically in 202526 the Trust will be focusing cn 3 'Big Moves' wihich redate 1o sirategic
goals 1,2 and &,

Paopls Strategy - New approach to Leaming and Development Meetings

= Paople Firsl Stratagy is revisad around key piflars of entiterment and drives the culiure and athos of
e Trusl The approach onsures that we have improved staff retantion, staff attendances,

* CoE has a hlly codifled approach to e development, raining and enhancement of skills,
knowledge and undersianding of stall in all roles,

= Systams in place fo record and track development

= Ensurs Il opporiunities for dewelopment ara forefronted for etaff in all roles that sarve our children
and commanities.

= Systamns developed to fully caplure this and synergisa with the developmeant of the revised approach
ler apsaraisal,

= Davalop somprehansive talent entification and succession planning approaches acrogs all roles.,

= Data shows Improved retanlian,

Pedagogy & Teaching - Learning Chronlcles & Currlewlum allgnment

» Partially embedded CELT Entflemant with detailed plan for fll implementation by the end of the
aCcadamic year.

# Learning chroniclas have been adopted and adagted o maat Prmary epecific neads

¢ Embed our approaches to padagogy and create an all-througih approach to leaming and teaching

= Mo leanned G el baband Our agproachaes to reading, numeracy and oracy enswre all students ane
succassiul

= Warialions armongst coborls arg minemisad and spacific mervantion plans are in place o enswre that
roulings of atlendance and engagemant are eslablished. Positive behaviour reinforcament s
raarmalised and rewards systoms are equitable in schools

Imprevemeant Framawork - Improvement Cycles, SEF, 5IP, Insight Reviews & Handbook
= Grogaling syrekigy, affeclivensss and efficiencies across all areas of the Trued, wilising project and
charge leadership strateqies

* Create a framework that forefronts enfiiemeant, value, development and recognition as oooe
campanants in & salf-improving crganisation

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

Tha Academy Trust acts as an agent in disfributing 18-18 bursary funds from the DIE. Payments
recaived rom tha DIE and subssgueant disbursements to students are excuded from the statermsent of
financial aclivites as the Academy Trust doas not hawe control over tha charitable application of the
funds. The Academy Trusl can use up o 5% of the allocation fowards ils own administration cosis
and hig is recognised m he stalément of Bnancial aclivifies. The funds received and paid and any
balances held are discosed in note 27, As of the 31 August 2025 undistnbuted bursary fundimg of
E73,383 was hald on the Trust's balance shest.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Auditar
irsafar as e Trusiess are aware:

theere ks no redevant audit information of which the charitable company's awditor is unswans

+ [he Trustess hava taken all skeaps that they ought to hava faken o make themsafvas aware of any
ralevant audd information and o aslablish thal the auddor B aware of that information,

The Trustess' Report, incorporating a Strategic Reporl, was approved by order of the Board of
Trusteas, as the company directors, on 08(12/2025, and signed an the boand's behall by

Tresias

Dm.»;:lﬁf.r.&rf DG
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement

Scope of responsibility

A= Trustees, we acknowladge we hawve overall responsibility for ensuring thatl Comeeall Education
Laarning Trust has an effective and appropriate syslam of conlral, financial and olhasweas. Howeyvar,
such a system 5 designed o manage rather than eliminate tha sk of filume O achleve Business
objectives and can provide only reasonabla and nol o absolube assursnce  agans!  matenal
missiatemant or loss,

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to O Morrow, a8s Accounting
Officar, for ensuring financial confrofs conform wilh he reguirerments of both propriety and good
financial managemant and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigrad 1o it in
the funding agreemeant bebyeen Cormeall Education Learning Trust and the Seacrafary of Slabe for
Education. Thay are slso responsible for reporting 12 the Board of Trusteas any malanal weaknasses
or breakdowns in intamal conbrol.

Gowvernanca

The information on governanca includad here supplaments thal describaed In the Trushees Report ana
in the Statement of Trustees’ Respansibilifes. The Board of Trusieas has formally mel 5 times durning
the year. Attendance during the year at meatings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Meatings Dt of &
Trustes attended possible
A G Brawn, Chakt (resigned 15 Ssplember 2025) (resigned 18 a 5
September 2025)
S M Dikon, (Chasr of Quality Assurance Committee) (resigned 15 1 q
March 2025) (resigned 16 March 2O25)
A S Mann, Vica Chair [To 18 September 2024) b 5
J G Simeons, (Chair of Finance, Staffing & Remuneration o 16 4 5
Septamber 2024) {Chalr of Audit & Risk from 17 September 2024)
J Connally, (Chair of Audit & Risk to {16 Seplember 2024) | Chair of
Financa, Stafing & Remumeration from 17 Saptember 2024) 4 o
(resigned 15 September 2025) {resigned 16 Septamber 2025)
J 5 Parkar, Wice Chair [koem 17 Saptember 2024) (Chalr of Estates, Il 5
15 & Chmale Emergancy)
S Foard, Chair {appointed 16 Septembar 2025) 5 -
S Goswell {appointed 4 Novamber 2024} 4 4
H Casson (appcinted 1 Septamber 2024) 4 5
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

The full Bosrd and commiliees of the Board of Trustess have mel & bolal of 18 times durng the
scademic year, This allows for substantia! snd significant ovarsight by the Board of Trustess of CELT,
The Finance, Siaffing and Remuneralion commiftes met 3 imes i coincde with key dates in the
finarcial reporteng cycle. In addtion, the Full Board mat S fimes in the pear to fulll the requirements of
the Academy Trust Handbook to dischargs responsibility and ensure rebust governance and effective
financial managamant,

Durirg the 2024/25 academic year the Board agreed 8 change io the aricles of association fo
minarity mixed articles, which were finalised in agreamenl with the Discese of Truro. Askel Veur iz a
corporate Member of CELT and Askef Wewr will reacommeand two Trusteste to bs appointed as CELT
Trustaes,

Following the resignation of the previous Accounting Officer, the Boand of Trustees underock a
national recrultment and appointed &n ncoming  Accounting  Officer from 1st January 2025,
Racruitmaent of Trusteas with specific skills was also sucoassiul in the year with a stranglhenad board
aperating for 2025/26. Motably the Chair of Trustees resigned afier the year end date, on 15ih
September 2025 with a new Chasr appointed from this data.

Through the board and committess of e board, the following areas are revewed and scrulenised:

+ slrategic devalopment plan

= financial poley slatements, including consideration of long-term plannlng (3 10 5 years) and
PeERCUrcing

+ incoms and eapendiurs of all funds

= laval of inancial delegation

= rewlew and mondor the adequacy of the strategic processes for risk management, internal control,
achisving walue for maney, govemnance and preparation of the governance statemant

+ pay policy and pay appeals policy of the Trust

= pay scadkes and inllalionary InCréases acoss the Tous)

#= all aspacts of currlculurm intent, implemantation and mpact in the academies

= progress and outcomes Sata for academies

= aclion plansfraports on vardention and heer mpac

= AcachEmess progress in relation o thel stabwlory largats sl progress

» Trustaes’ CPD and training

= the requerements of childesn with special neads

= iroration aboul the scademies outeomsaa and determne action takan to iImprove pardormance

* gradamiss progress on curriculum policies and stafulory obligalions

» Income and expendiiure of capital funds, such B8 achool condiion allocaton, devolved formuwls
capilal and other capital projects

= health and safety in relation to Trast sites

= Trust's plans, aims and aclions apperaining o approved climate emargency objectivas

= chargas and remissions

» gffectiveness and resources of the externalfinternal sudiors or scrutinesrs 1o provide & basis for
their reappointment, dismissal, retendering, of remuneration, Considarations may inchucle:

<tha auditor's sechor aapartise

=audil comments and recommendations in relalion to key aneas

<the personal autharity, knowledge and ntegrity of awdit partners and thesr staff to Interact effectively
with, and robustly challenge, the Trust's managers

-maragament of iraud and report any major weakness or breakdown ta the DIE

The Board af Trustees continue to review and Implement the action plan from the previous review of
GOVEMAnNGE.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Vision and strategy

1. Trustess 1o ensure 1hat the Trust valuas are embedded across the Trusl.

2 Trusfeas to lake ownership of the visicn and stralegic directian of the Trest,

3. Trustess o increase their knowledge and understanding of Trust aystems and civic leadarship roles
4 Review the Trust sk assurance apgraach

Governance structure and practice

5. Becruil additional Trusteses to increase boand capacity

B Recond aclions arsing in minutes,

T Buppor Members to fully understand and delivar their rala
B.Review and ameand lha schema of detegation

8. Review he roke of the local leval of govemance

Trusteas are provided with data from trusted quality assurad sources mckedeng DFE, Ofsted, FFT, and
axdamally providad {infemally populated] fracking Systems such as Insighl and SISRA. Trusieses are
provided with wall created datasets which gives tham the besl foundations for analysis, Trushass ara
provided with data linked to exiernal validabion and undertake benchmarking bassd on local and
national validated sources,

Trusleas have bean provided with fraining to support thedr knowledge and undersianding of how 1o
manage conflict of imerest. GELT Trustees understand they hawve a duly to act excimively in the
interasts of CELT

CELT Trustess understand that if they couwld bensfit financially or otherwize from their invalveman
with CELT either directly or indirectly through someone they are connectad to or their duly 1o the Trust
conflicts with an obligaticn they have to another organisation or persen, that they must declare thair
interest. The duly on Trustees is [0 prevent conflicts of interest from affecting a decision.

Ab v Slart of avery masling, CELT Trustess and Governorg are given the opportunily 1o declare an
intarest in any proposad or aclual iransaction or arrangement on the mesling agenda.

CELT heip a weitlar record af all conflicts of intarest and how the Trusl dealt with them in the minutes
of Truestes mootings. Theso explain;

= il arty conflicis of Inleres! were declarad in advance

= what so of oorfliet of interest If was

= which Truslas or Trustass ware alladhed

= | argane withdrew from the discussion

= an outline of the discussion and how Trestees made the decision in CELT's best intarasts (mduding
how thie confict did nod influance bhe decisson).

In the finandcial year 2024/25 there ware O recorded conflicts of interest.

Governance reviews
Following the Mational Governance Association axtarnal review of govemance caried oul i 2023
progress has been mada with addressing the aclions identfiad in the Action Plan
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Cormwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement l:ﬂl'.'l-l'l-til'll.-lﬂd:l
Action Plan

Wislon and strategy
1. Trusteas ko answra that the Trust values are embeadded acrass the Trus]

Subslaniial progress has been made with This aclion, The majorily of policies have been updated to
the riew Tarmal which includes (he Trosh values, Progress made In kfentifiing the Link Governors and
i the commencement of visis with soma schools now having a link brustes appoented,

2. Trustess to take awnerehdp of the vision and sirategic directon of the Trust

Tha thrae-year strategic plan identdies five areas which buwild on the strategic prioriliss. SMART
largets will be bult arcund thal, The Probationary Managemen! Review for the Trust Leater
appainied in year has been completed and Trustess ware satisfied with the implemeantation of tangets,
tha Trus! Board will need Woensura that they confinug 1o manitor progress,

3, Trustess to incraase thelr knowledge and understanding of Trust systems and civic leadership roles

Trusiees have accass (o information from the Confederation of Schools Trusts (C5T) and the Mational
Governance Associabon (MGA) and attended the C5T Govamance Conference during the yaar. The
Trusl are providing opportundies for Trusiess 10 engsge In training. A training programmes was
undartaken during the year and addfional opporunibies for training wears denbifiad.

4 Review tha Trusl risk assurance approach

Gensaral updates on nsk have been providad to Trestess by tha Daputy Trust Lead. Risk Managemeand
processes have been added in thair Infemal Audil programme far 2024/25. The Deputy Trusl Lead
has regular mestings with thae Chair of the Auwdil and Risk Committes with questions and responses
from lhese mestings b=ing circulsted to the full mesting, &m0 updaied approach fo the Risk Registar
has bean developed for 202526 with each committes having thair own nek register and the AR
committss having oversight of s registars.

Governance structure and practice
8. Recruit an additonal Member and Trustees to incresaes Board capacity

Furtheer Trusbes were appomnbed moyear and SUCCRSSION anning & angoing, s part of this. a new
Chalr was successfully appoinied from within the Board and development of potential future
committes chairs 18 underway

6 Record aclions arising in minules

All Committes snd Board minutas now record the actions arising,.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

7 Support Mermbers to fully understand and dedver their rola

The Chalr of Trustees annual repart to Members provides evidance as doss the shanng of Intamal
and External Auddt repors. Reguest to Dhocesan Board of Education to provide Mamber fraining and
mentaring,

8 Review and amand tha scheme of dalegation

Tha Trust Scheme of Delegation was thoroughly reviewed in the latter part of 2024/25 and updatad,
This was spproved in Octobar 2025,

O Haview tha rola of the local level af governance

The decizion to disband Local Governing Body's and the Hapid Improvement Groups was lakens
durireg the vear and replacsd wih a newy local tied governance madal rom Septamber 2025 that s
mckusive, transparent and community informad. The intended impact is 1o lead to:

= Stronger partnerships with leamars, familiesicarars, stall and koal erganisabions, anhancing support
for studants.

s Increased parantalicarar and communily sngagarmenl 0 schadd life and decision-making

= & cullure of aclive lislaning and résponshianess 10 communily needs and aspiralions.

Diur ‘lecal tiar' of Community Champians will be reprasentad throwgh a)
= Cammunity and Ciwie Champean

* Incluséon and SEND Champion

= Parent and Carer Champion

= Pupil Champion

= Stall Champian

= Safeguarding Champion

¢ Bustainability Champion

Committees

The Auwdit and Risk Committes is a sub-commitbes of the main Board of Trustees. Iis purpose is to
rmeet as and when neceseary, but not lass than onca a {erm, and presant a report ko @ach mesting of
the Board of Trestees. The commitbes assisl in the decsion making of the Board of Trustees, by
enabling mare delailed congideration to be given to the bast means of fulfilling the Board of Trustee's
responsibility to ansure good managemant of the Academy's finances and resousces, Including proper
plartning, monitoring and probiy. Attendanca ai maeatings durimg 1the year was as folows:

Meelings Dutof a
Trustes attendad possikle
J Conmnoiy 3 3
A 5 Mann 1 3
J 5 Parker 3 d
J C Simeons 3 d
A G Brown 1 3
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

The Quality Assurance Committes is 8 commities of the Board of Trugiees monitors and adwisas the
Trusl Board in refation o the fotiowing: Data on attainment and achievement for all of the Trusts
schools, School improvement work and leadership, Overall perlormance of the schools, Leadership
standards, Local Governanco effectiveness, SEMN and inclusion, Parinership working, Admissions and
Bafeguarding arrangemants, Altendance 3 meetings during the year was as follows:

Meetings Out of a

T sttended  possible
A G Brown 2 4
S M Divon 1 2
J G Simeons 3 4
S Goswal 3 a
H Casson a 3
S Foard 4 4

The Finance, Skaffing and Remunaration Committee are a committes of the Board of Trustess and
advise the Board of Trustees on struciural and strategic matiers relatimg 1o the staffing of the Trust
Atlendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Meetings Out of &
attended possible

Trinsbes

J G Simeons
JCanroily

J & Parkes
5 Foard

&G Brown

& Mann

N o T T £ R 1
(IO P LA T

The Esfales, 13 & Climate Emergency committes supports and advizes the Board of Trustess in thair
atrateqic and long-lesm view of investment and expandiure across the whale estale, acknowladging
and accounting for kecal need o e way the strategy s delivered. Ensuring that CELT develop a
propery and estate services that can flex 1o meat the future nesds of our pupils and stakaehaldars, ina
challenging funding climate. Attendance at meetings during the year wiss a5 follows:

Meetings ©Out of &

TrN. attended  possible
A G Brown 3 3
J 5 Parker 3
& M Dieon ; 2
S Foard 2 3
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Cormwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Review of Value for Monay

A5 Accounling Officar, the Chief Executive Officer has responsib@ity for emsuring that the Academy
Trust dalivers good value In the uss of public rescurces, The Accounting Officer understands thai
valua Tor money relers 1o the educalional and wider socielal cufcomes, as well as astates safaty and
management, achisved in setucn for the laxpayer rasources meoeivad

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trus!'s use of i resources has provided good
walug for money dunng each academic year, and reporls to the Board of Trusiees whare value for
Morey can ba improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by wsing a framework whera
appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved valug e momney
during the yaar by

= Bngsunng resources arg directed where they will ba mo#i effeclive in achieving culcomes for pupils
including, deploying staff efficently o support schoal improvement and developments such as he
Schaaol Improveman Team which has been created. This keeps staff within thair substantive confract
whilst prowiding support o other schools and opportunities for their own CPD with no extra costs
incurred and when recreiment nead has angen a review of current stafl has been undertaken and
etaff sharediredeployed where poasible to save costy

= reviewang confracts fo ensure that they are siill fit for puerpose and Dest vakee for our schools, Driving
down coste through better procurement and negotiation Based on the economy of scale of the MAT
through the financlal year such as Read Write Ing, Opening Words and compliands maniforing system
gs wall as introducing 8 “tulk purchase' strategy for curriculum resources to drive down cosis in thia
fras

= benchmarkeg the Academy Trusl spend against olher schools and ensuring signilicand vafances
ara reviewad 1o provide sesurance that the expanss i appropriate to our achoals and providing value
far manay

» collaborating with all schools within CELT and in our stretegic parinerships 1o ensure the delivery of
etrong syetem leadership end svidenced based improvement sirategles o impact on pedormance

= warking chossly with the Estates team to lead on balancing and reconclling the warious compeiing
damands from the esiate and the strategy st an accapiable and sustainable cost. Priortisstion of
capital Investmanl = made to ensure alignment with the abjectives of CELT and compiance with
ralavant standards

Tha Purpose of the System of Internal Confrol

The syatem of oternal contral (& designed o manage rsk o a reasonable level ralher than 1o
aliminate all risk of failure fo achiowe polices, aims and obsectves. It can, tharefore, only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectivenass. The system of intermal contral & based on
BN on-going process designed fo identify and proritise the risks o the achisvement of Academy Trust
policies, aima and objectves, o evaleate he likelihood of these risks being radlised and the impact
should they be realised, and fo manage tham efficiantly, effectively and economically, Tha Risk and
Audit committee appoint an internal auditor to cary oul their scruliny of systems, procedures and
controls &5 part of Bn annual programme. The comméttes directs this wirk based on Identified rsks
fram the live risk register. The commitles meosives repons cergally fram the intermal auditor at thair
committee mestings and discuss the findings and managemeant responges requiring updates on
aclions taken whera approprista. The system of internal control hes been in place in Cormwall
Education Learning Trust for the year ended 31 August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the
annual reged and linancial Stalamaents,

Fage 15



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Bosrd of Trusiees has reviewad the key risks to which the Acedemy Trust is exposaed, together
with the aperating, financial and compliance controls thai have been implemented 1o miligate thasa
rsks. Al every mastng of the Board of Tresteas tha live risk register for the Trust is raviewad and
updated. Al each commilies of the Board, the ralevant oparational risk regster is reviewad and this
feads o b live sk register, The Board of Trestess s therafors of the view that thare = a famal
on-going process for idaentifying, evaluating and manageg the Academy Trusl's significan] rsks that
has been in place Tor the year ending 31 August 2025 and up 1o he date of approval of tha annual
respor] and financial statements. This prooess is regularly raviewad by the Board of Treslaes,

Thare wana no matenial contral or ather issues reported by the Internal Audior to data.

The Risk and Contral Framewark

The Academy Trust's system of infamal fnancial condrol @5 based on a framework of regular
rmanagemant information and administratve procedures including the segregation of dulies end a
systam of detagation and accourtability. In padicular, il includes:

» comprehensive Bedgeting and manitaring systems with an annual bugget and pencdic firancial
repors which are reviewed and agresd by the Board of Trusiees;

+ regular revlews by the Finance, Staffing and Remuneration Purpeses Committes of repors, which
indicate financial parformance against the forecests and of major purchaze plans, capital works
and expendillng programmes;

« sgtling targeds b0 maasure financial and olhar parormancs,

»  clearly defined purchasing (assel purchase ar capital investmeant) guidelines,
+  delagadion of authordy and segragation of duliss

* idantification and managemant of rigks.

The Baard of Trustees has considered the need for a specific intemal audd function and appoinied
Devon Assurance Partnership 85 Iniemal Audidor durng the year. Thie option hes been chosan
because the Trust deams the knowledpe and exparence provided fo ke superor to other options
whilst alez representing good value for monay. Tha Internal Awditors parform all engagaments with
proficiancy, des professional care and in complanca with ha Inlermnational Standards for the
Praofessional Praclcs of Intamal Auditing

The sarvice includes giving advice on financial matters and perdorming a range of checks on the
Academy Trusts financial systems and other key areas of risk a5 agreed with CELT Trustéss (Audil
and Risk Commitiee), The programme of Internel Audit reviews i approved by the Audif and Risk
Committes annually, and in 2024725 coverad the fodowing:

Payrodl - Substantial Assurance

Parsannel - Substantial &ssurance

Estate Management Follow Up - Ressonable Assurance

IT Raviaw & Dala Managemeand Follow Up - Reasonabla Assuranca

Whaan a v&sil is underaken, the Independent Awditor regorts 1o the Board of Trustess, through the
finarea commifles on the cparation of B systems of condrel and on the dischamge of the Board of
Trustees' financlal responsibilities &nd annually prepares an annual summary report 10 the commities
ocufliming |he areas reviewed, kay findings, racommandations and conclusions to help the committes
congicder aclions and A5SeSS YRAr on YEAr progress.

There wans no material contral or other isaues reported by the Intermal Auditor to date,
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Review of Effectiveness
Az Accountsng Officer, D Marrow has responsibility for reviewsng the effectiveness of the system of
infernal control. During the waar in question the feview has been informed by

L]

L

the work of the inbernal controls reviewer
the work of the extermal auditor;

the financial management and gowernance self-assessmaent process or the school resource
management sell-assesmen ool

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust wha have responsbiity for the
development and malntenance of the intemal contrad frameswo,
cormespondence from DFE a.g. FHENH and 'minded (o' letters,

The Accounting Officer has been adwised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal contral by the Audit Commaties and & plan 1o address sweaknessss and ensurg canbinuous
irmprowemsant of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advica of the audit and nsk committes and the accounting officer, the board of frusiees
is of the opinion that the academy irest has an adequate and effective framework for govemnance, nsk
management and contral.

Approved by order of the mambers of the Board of Trustees on ﬂg""‘:;s and ssgned on its bahalf
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As accounting officer of Cormwall Education Learning Trust, | confirm thal | have had due regard to
e framawork of authonties govemeng ragularity, prognsty and compliancs, including the fnest's
hending agreement with DIE, and the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including
responsibilies for estabes safely and managemeant, | have also considered my responaibility to notify
lhir mcademy st board of trustess and DFE of matestal Fregularnty, impropriety and non-compliance
with terms and conditions of all fumding, incisding for estates safety and managament,

| eonfirm that |, and the board of trusiees are able 1o Wantly any material iragulas o Impropes usa of
all funds by tha acadamy trust, or malarial non-compiiance wilh the framework of aulhorises.

| confimm that no imstances of materal Eragularty, impropdety of non-Compliance have been
diszowvermad (o date, I any instances are idenlified after the date of thes statement, thess will B& notified
by thie bioard of trustees and DFE,

B M
Accounling offices y

D ih' e 5
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trusiees (who are also the deractons of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
arg respongible Tor preparing the Trustess’ Repor and the financial statemants in atcordance with the
Acadamiss Accourts Direction published by ke Department for Education, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {Uniled Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practica)} and applicable law

and raguisiions.

Company law reqguires the Trustess to prepare financial statemeants for each financial yvear, Under
company law, thie Trestess must not approve the financial statements unless thay ame salisfed hal
they give a frue and far view of lhe state of affairs of the charitable company and of s Incoming
resaurces aml application of resources, incheding its incoma and sxpenditure, loe thal penod. In
preparing these financial statements, tha Trustess ar reguened o

+ galect suitable accounding policies and then apply them consistently;

= phaarve the methods and principées in fie Chariies SORF 2013 and the Adcademias Accounis
Direction 2024 o 2025;

* make judgments and accounting estmales that are reasonabie and prudent;

o slate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards heve been followed, subject oy material
deparieres disclosed and axplained i the financial statermants;

= prepara the financial statemanis on the going concern basis unlass il s Inappropriate 10 presums
thai the charitabla company will conbnua in business.

The Truslees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting reconds thal are sufficiant to show and
gxplain the charitable company's iransaclions and discloge with ressonable accuracy at any tima ihe
finargiad posilion of the chantable company and erable them o ansure that the financil stalemants
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitabée company and hence for faking reasonable steps for the prevenfion and detection of fraud
and other imeguiaritias.

The Truslees are responsible for ensuring hal in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls which conform with the fequirements both of propriety and of good
financial managemant. Thay are also responsible Tor ensuring grants received from ESFADIE have
been apglied for the purposes mlbanded,

Tha Truslees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financad
Information included on tha charitable company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislaficn in
alher jurisdictions.

F-F'F'I"ﬂﬂ.ﬂ!ﬁ by order of tha members of the Board of Trusteas l:irfJ:EuJ"'E,‘I ﬂr;ﬁﬂ signed on |ta bahalf

\f;:ﬁér:}rd

S Foard
Triuslss
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Dpinion

We have audited tha financial stsiements of Cornwal Educalion Learneng Trusd (B Tres?) for he
year ended 31 August 2025, which comprise the Slalemanl of Financal Actvities, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Cash Flows 2nd Mobes o iha Financal Statements, inchuding a summary of significant
gccounting policies. The finencizl raporting Framawork thal has besn applied in thelr preparation (s
applicable law snd United Kingdom Accounting Slandards (United Kingdom Genarally Accepted
Aocountmg Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Repoding Standard applicable in tha UK and
Rapublic of neland

In ocur ogdniess the financial elzlamenis:

« plva a rus snd Fair vieny o B Ci2i of B Trusls affairs as 8l 31 August 2025 and of its indoming
fasouies and ppplcaton of paoless, inciading s icome and expenditure, for e year then
aindad;

+ have Been proparny pregeed moaccordance with United Kingdom Genevally Accepted Accounting
Fractice, the Charties SORP 2019 and the Acsdemeas Accounts Dhraction 2024 to 2025; and

= have besn prepared in accordanca with the mauiremeants of the Companies Act 2006,

Bazia far apinlen

We conducted sur audit in accardanss wilh Inbarnalional Standards on Auditing [UK) (1588 (LK)} &nd
epplcabhe lasr Our responsibiities under those standards are further desibed v (he acditor
rezponsibilitizs for tha audd of the finencal stelaments section of cur report, We are independent of
the Trus? In socordancs wih Lha einicad requirements that are relevant 1o our audit of the financial
stataman's in e U, including e FRCS Ethical Standard, and we have fulfied our other sthical
ragponeinilites in acoordancs with hese requiremants. We baelieve thal the audil evidence we have
catzined s =ufficiend and apyeorinde o provide 3 basis 1o oud opinlan.

Coneluelens relsting to going comcarn

I auctitrey the financial stalemonts, wa have concluded thed the Trustese’ use of the going concem
basis of gooounting in he prapasation of the financkad statements is approprate.

Based on {he work we havs parformad, we have not edentified any mabesial wncertainties mdadirg 1o
events or conditions that, individusly or collzctively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability 1o
continue as g going concam for & period of &l least iwelva months fram when the orignal financial
slatemeris wara authoriged for isue.

Dur mesponsibilities and e resooesiciibes of the Trostess with respect 10 goevg CoNCem ans
describad in the misvant seclions of this report,

Piage 40



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Cornwall Education Learning Trust (continued)

Other information (covers the Referance and administrative details, the Trustees' Report and
Strategic Report and the Governance statemaent)

The Trusiees are responsible for the othar information, The sther Information comprises the
infermaticn included in the annual report, other than the financial statemends and our auditor's repor
theraon. Cur opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and, excapt ko
the axtenl otherwise sxplicitly stated In our report, swe do oot express.any form of assurance
concliesion thersan,

In conneclion with our awd of the fmancial statemeants, our responsibilily s 1o read e ot
Infermation and, In doing S0, conssder whather the otfer infarmation iz materially mcongiziani wilh B
finsncial statemenis or our Knivaledgs obiained in the awdit or afhersige appears 1o b malerialy
rmisstatad. f we identify such matenal inconsisianckes or apparanl matanal misatatermonis, v Bee
raquired (o determine whather dhera is a matesial misstatemant in the Fnancial stammonts or a
material misstatement of the ather infarmation. if, basad an the wark we have perfarmead, we concluds
that thare is & material misstatemant of this alhar information, we are required bo report that f=ct

Wi have nothing to report in thes regand,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004
Im our opinicn, based on the work undartakan in the course of the audit;

= e information ghwan in tha Stategioc Repart and Trushess” Report far tha financial yeer fue which
e financial stalemeants are praperad 8 sonalstent with the financal stalaments, and

* tha Sirategic Report and Trusiees' Report have besn prepared in accordanca with applicasia lagal
raguirsmanis

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Ins b light of Sur knowledge and understanding of the company and i5 envirenment oxa r'-; i1 e

eourse of the audll, wa have nol identifiad matarial misstatemants In the Strategic Repart o Trigtess’

Regart.

We have nothing to report in respect of the foillowing mettars whare the L':ﬁjnpaniﬂa At 2008 roguires

ug to report fo you i, noour ooinion:

=  adeguais accocunting records havae nal bean kepl, or relums sdequals for our audit have sl Baan
raceived from branchas nod visitad by us; or

= Ihe financial stalemants are nol in agreement with the accouniing records and relums; o
= perten discksures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not mads; or

= wa hive not received all the informstion and explanations we require fof our awdil,
Responsibilities of Trustees

fs explained more fully in the Stalement of Trustess” Responsibilities [sel oul on pags 28], he
Trestess are responsible for the praparation of the financial statements and for baing satisfies thal
thay give 8 true and fair view, and for such internal controd as the Trusiess detarmine is necassany bo
anable the preparation of financial statemeants thal are frea from material misstatemeant, whathar dus
to fraud or arror.

In preparing lhe financial statemants, the Truslees are responstble for assessng the Trusts abdiby to
continue as a going concam, disclosing, as applicabé, matlers related 1o goirg concerm and using e
going coencem basis of accountng unless the Trustees either intend o liquidate the Trust or o cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but 1o do so.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Cornwall Education Learning Trust (continued)

Auditor Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectivas ane 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemsants as a whaole
arg [rew fram maledal misstatement, whether due bo frawd or erfor, and 1o Szee an audidor's repod
that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurancs is a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantes
treat am audit conducted in sccordance with 1SAs [UK) will always datect a material misstatemenl
when il esists, Misstalemenis can arse from fraud or errar and are considersed materal i, individually
or in the aggregala, they could reasonably ba expected fo influence tha economic decigions of users
taken on the bast of these financial statameants.

Irragularibes, including raud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations. We design
procedures i line wilh awr respoens|bililies, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respact
of imeguiarties, Including fraud. The extent to which our procedurss are capabds of detacting
irregularities, including fraud is detaied balow

Ag part of our audit planning we obtained an undaersianding of tha lagal and reguiatary Trampswork thal
iz applicabla to the snfity and the education sectar m which it operates to enbify the key laws and
ragulations affecting the enlity. Tha kay laws and requiations wa identified were compliance with the
funding agreement and Academies Tres! Handbook 2024 and requirerments with regard Lo

sadeguanding,

We alse consldered those laws and regudations thal have a direct impact on the preparation of the
Financial statements, primarily the Academias Accounts Direction 2024 1o 2025, Companies Act 2006
and Chartties Act 3111,

We discussed with managameant how the compliance with these laws and regulations B monitored
and discussad the policies and procedires inoplace, We also idenfifed the Rndividuals Who hase
ragponadility for ensuring that the enlity complies with laws and regulations and deals with reporting
any issues if they arsa

As par ol our planming procedures, Wwe assessed the risk af any mon-compliance with laws and
regulations on he esdity's abidlily to continue operating and |he risk of material misstetemant to the
aceounls,

Baszed on this understanding we designad our audit procadures o identify non-compliance with such
I and ragulations, Our procedures involved the foliowing:

= Conducting datailad regularity testing m accordance wih the Framework and Gada Tor Exlesnal
auditors and Reporting Accountand of Acadery Trusts ags issued by the DIE, as reported on
separately In our Independant Reporting Accountant's Assurance Repor,;

= Revlewing Board and Finance Committes minwtes for indcations of non comphancs;

= Reviewing legal and professional costs io identify legal costs in respect of non compliance,

= Discussing the procedures in place for enauring the safeguarding of pupils;

= Raviawing lhe accounis disclosures against those in thae Academiss Model Accauntes 2024 to 2025,
published by the DIE

Ac part of our enquiries we discussed with management whather there have been any known
instancas, allagafions or suspicions of raud of which thers ware nons.

We aiso evaluated the risk of fraud through managemant overrde including thal ansing rom
management's incenlives, We determined that these rsks are low as the Trust operates on a
charitable, not for praf bases and so there would be no mobivation for management 1o influence
performance for individual gaim. However, there was considesed a risk of the inappropriate allocafion
of expenditure against resincted funds.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Cornwall Education Learning Trust (continued)

In response bo the identified risk, as part of aur audit wark we:

* Roviewed bhe material restricted grant income sources, (dentfied the related condions and
reviewsd the nalure of sxpenditure set against it for appropriateness, together with sample testing on
axpandibura;

= Lged data anaylics bo tesl journasl entries on a sampls basis, for approprialensss:;

» Feviewad accounlg eslimates and judgemants mada in the sccounts for any indicetion of bias and
challenged assumptions used by mansgemeant in makirsg the estimates,

Bacause of the inherent limitations of an sudlt, here & a fsk ihal we will nol detect all irrequlanbss,
including those leading to & material mizstalemend in the financial stalements. This rsk increases the
furthver removed non-compliance with laws and regulations & from the events and transactionsg
reflected In the financial statemenis as we anre less Bkely 1o becoms awsre of Inslances of
non-compéance. The risk of not datacting a material migstatement due to fraud is highar than the risk
ol ned datecting ona rasuling frem amor, as fraud mey mvolve defiberate concealment, callusion,
omisssnn of misrepresantation

A further descripton of cwr responsibiliies & available on e Financial Reporting Councif's website
at: wwowfro.org uklaudiforsresponsibifies. This desciption forms par of our audilor’s repart.

Use of aur repor

This report 5 made solely o the Trust's Members, as a body, i aceordancs wih Chapter 3 of Part 16
ol the Campanies Act 2008, Cur audil work has been undarteken sa that we might state fo the Truafs
Mambers those mallers we are requerad 1o state fo them in an auditee’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, wa do nol accepl or assume rasponsibility to anyone
olhar than the Trust's Membars, as a body, for our audil work, for thee repodt, oF Far the apinions we
hiave larmed,

Fepresd vy
[CIEILIE: i) T T
Loulze Bridgelt {Sanior Statulory Audites)
PRF Francis Clark, Statulory Auditor

Malville Bulding East

Linit 18, 3 Royal William Yand
Phyrniouth

PLY 3GW

10 December 2025
51 ;TR OT e
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to Cornwall Education Learning Trust and the Secretary
of State for Education

In accordance with the ferms of cur engagement letler dated 23 September 2025 and further 1o the
requirements of the Depariment for Education [DFE) as inchudad in the axtant Framework and Guida
for External Auditors and Reporting Accountante of Academy Trusts, we have cared oul an
engagamant o cbiam limited assurance about whether anmytheng has come to our attenbon that wsould
suggest, in all material respects, the expenddure disbursed and Income recelved by Cosrmasll
Education Leaming Trust during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not besn
applied 1o the purposes intandsd by Parliament and thal the financial transactions da not conform 1o
thie althorities which govern fhem,

This report is made solely o Comwall Education Leaming Trust and fhe Secretary of State for
Educadion in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undartaken so
thal we may stale 1o Comwall Education Laaming Tres! and the Secratary of Siate for Education
those matters we are requerad o state in a repor and Tor no otber purpass, To the uBast sxtent
parmittad by fw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to amona other than Cormwall Education
Laarming Trusl and the Secretary of Siate for Education, for our work, for this report, or for fhe
conclusion wa have formed,

Respective responsibilities of the accounting officer of Comwall Education Leamning Trust and
the reporting accountant

The sccounting officer i responsible, under the requirements of the board of trustess' funding
agresment with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 March 2011 and the Academy Trusl
Hanibaok for enguring thal expenditera disbursad and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parllamant and the financal ransactions conform fo the autharities which govern them.

Cur responsibilities for this engepgement are established in the United Kingdom by cur profession’s
affesl guedance and arg to oblain limited asswrance and report in accordance with our engegement
latter and the requiremants of the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Raporting
Accountanls of Academy Trusis. We report 1o you whether anything has come to aur atiention In
carryireg oul our work which suggests that in all matenial raspacts, expanditure disbursed and income
recaived during the year from 1 Seplamber 2024 to 31 Augusi 2025 hawe not bean applied for the
purpeses intended by Pardlament or that the financial trensaciions do not conform to the authorities
which govem them,

Approach

We conducted our angagemeant in accordance with the Framewaork and Guide Tor Extarmal Audidors
and Reporing Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by DFE, which requires a limited assurance
engagament as sat oul in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement s fo perform such procedures as to obtain
Informabicon and explanations in order o provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence o exprass a
negative conclusion on regularity

& limited assurance engagemend is mora Bmited in acope than a reasonable assurance angagern s
and consequently doss nol enable us to oblain asawrance that we would bBecoms aware af all
significan! matlers thal might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
fo nal express a posithee opinion.

Dur engagement includes examination, on a fest basis, of evidence relevant to the regulasity and
proprigly of he Academy Trusl's income and expenditure.,
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to Cornwall Education Learning Trust and the Secretary
of State for Education (continued)

The wark wndertakan fo drgew 1o our condussan includes:

* Inspection of the expendiiure allocsled to material resincled gran mocome streams;

= Substantiva lasting of 585 oxponsas, credil card expenaes and restructuring paymenis.
=  Enquines of managem:ant

Cornciusban

in e courss of our wark, nadhing has come b our atbention which suggests thal in all materda
raspacts tha expendilure dizbursed and incoms recaived during the yvesr from 1 September 2024 1o
31 Au;;ﬁi‘! 2055 has Nl hiecr annibsd for B purposes miendad By Pariamend or that the financial
trangaohone do not condomi b ithe suthoriies which govesm Tha

oyl I
—_" r?""" TR = e
Lallse Bndaal!
PKF Francis Clark, Chartersd fecountands
delville Balloing =ast
Rk TH, 2 ':.:;.:,--:_! Wiham Y&ra
Prymicigih
[+ L e

10 December 2025
|| -
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2025
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

MNalbe

Income and andowmants from:

Voluntary income
Duanaticns and capital

grants 2
Chantable activibiea:

Funding for the Academy
Trust's charilabla operations 3
Oiibwar (rading activitles 4
Invastmanis R
Testal

Expenditing on:
Feaising funds B

Chantable activilies:
Aidarmy brust aducational
operations il

Tadad
Pl incomefaspandilurg)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains
and losses

Mctuarisl gainfloes) on
dufined benalil pension
schemes 25

Meal movament in funds
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds browght forward
at 1 Sepiamber 2024

Tolal funds camed forsard

at 31 Augus! 2025

Restricted Restricted
Lnrastriclod Ganaral  Fixed Assal 2024125
Funds Funds Furnds Total
E £ E E
w0, 32T BT i L 13,223,350 {3,3588,570
b ol Rk GE, 123415 - B8 30 6as
soyTar . - 55y, ar
203,805 - 203,504
4,071, 240 6E, 178,318 13,223 350 83,472,902
151.695) 15,101 - {38, S04
1,716,004 67,244,020 3698877 T2oenndin
1,666,308 _ B7,259,130 3E9BBTT  _ T7524.500
7 404,031 (1,080, 818} 9 524473 0, 5A% 585
[2, 162 361) 1,778,247 B4 114
. {536,000 - {536, 000}
242570 TE1.424 Q908 587 10,312 665
31858 252 R38BT 108, 823 382 194 300 431
4. 180,862 TO0, 246 119,731,964 124,815,007
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Mota

Income and endowments from:

Woluntary income
Donations and capital

granis 2
Chamtable activiias:

Funding for the Academy
Trust's chasilabda oparations 3
CHhor trading asliviies 4
Invesiments 5
Talal

Expenditure on:
Raiging funds B

Charitabds achvilies:
Academy Inust edusational
operathans T

Talal
Ml I (e pandeune)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains
and losses

Actusriad gainfloss) on
delingd bhenadil pansion

SChHEMES #5

Mat movemen! in
{ehaficil pflunds

Reconciliation of funds

Tatal funds broaght forward
atl 1 Saptember 2021

Total funds carried forward
at 31 August 2024

Festricted Restricted
Unrestricted Geanaral Fized Assat Tatal
Funds Funds Fumnds 202524
£ E E E
64,397 42 356 5085075 5,671,828
2831 629 63,275,792 - 66,207 421
446 5338 - 448 538
ED 140 - - a9, 140
3,531,704 §3.318, 148 5,585.075 T2.414 827
148, 347 T 24 156,071
1,744 GO9S G4 B0, 295 +,393,901 70 058,881
1,883 042 B4 028 018 3.353 901 70,214 962
1,638 662 (1.609871) 217,174 2,193 965
{1,873.787) 1,584 926 ars asi

- (353,000} - 353, 000

{338,125) (407 545) 2,550, 35 1,806 9685

d 273417 46, 762 107 273,347 112,493 528
3,838 292 538 817 108,823 382 114,300, 431
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2025

Company Mumber: 07565242

Fixed assets
Tangible assals

Current assets
Cuzbtors
Cash al bank and @ hand

Creditors: Amounis falling due within one year
Met cument assets

Total assets less cument liabilities

Cradifors: Amounds falling dua afler mone tham o year

Mat assets axcluding pension llabéty
Total asasts
Funds of the Acadamy!

Restricted funds
Restricted gonaral fund
Restriched finad asset fund

Unrestricied funds
Unreatricted general fund

Total funds

Nete

12

13

2025 2024
E E
117,843 451 107,734,000
2,412,047 3,202 687
9,425.479 8,281,372
11,838,426 11,484,030
(5,110,045) (4,744 206)
6,728,381 6,739,233
124 671832 114,474,823
(58,755) {174,332)
124,813,077 114,300,481
124,613,077 114,300,491
700,246 538,817
110,731,060 109,823,382
120432215 110,362,199
4,180,862 3.038.292
124,613,077 114,300,491

The financial statementa on pages 48 to 33 ware approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue
oo .].?E-.!.%ﬁﬁ.-anl:t are signed on their behalf by:

5 Foard
Trugtes
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2025

2025 2024
Mote £ E

Cash flows from operating activities
Mot cash providad bylused in) oparabing activities 149 1,755,604 (1.366_B8T)
Cash flows from investing activities 21 {451,077) 486,559
Cash flows fram financing activities 20 {160,320 (154, 165)
Change in cash and ¢ash eguivalents Im the year 1,144,107 (1,034 293
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 8,261,372 8,315,665
Cash and cash sguivalents at 31 August a9 9,425 474 8.281.372
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025

1 Accounting policies

A summany of he principal accounting policies. adoptad [which have been applied consistently, axdept
whern nofed), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertamty is st out below,

Bssis of preparation

The financial statemants of the Academy Trust, which is a public benafi entity under FRS 102, have
bopn prepeased wnder the hlstorkcsl coat convention n aoccordance with the Finandial Reapoding
Standasd Applicable in the UK =nd Republic of reland {(FRS 102), the Accounling and Reporting by
Charities; Staternent of Recommended Practice applicable to charibes preparing thelr accounts in
goccondanse with the Finansiol Hopoitng Standerd applicable In the UK and Republic of freland
(Charfies SORP (FRS 102)), ke Academiss Accounts Direction 2024 ko 2025 Eseed By DIE, he
Charitias Act 2011 and the Cormpanias At 2006,

Commwall Education Learming Trsl maets the definition of a public benafit entity under FRS 102,

Going concarn

The Trusiens asgess whether the wse of goéng concam & spproprieie ie. whethar fhene ane any
migtarial urcorainties mlaled b events or conditions: Ihat may cast significant doubd on the ability of
tha company 1o condnué &5 F aolng concern. The Trustees make this assessmend in respect of a
perod of &f least ona yaer from the data of authorsation for issae of the financial statements and
hava conciuded thel the scademy bust hias adequate resources o continue in- operational existence
for tiva foreszashle futum and thara are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability t
conbinuge g o goeng concern, Nus they confinue to adopt the going concern basis of accountEng in
pregarng tne fingncial glefomants. Plsasa refed o going concom saclion in ihe Trustess” report for
Furtfuer chakad

Inzoma

All incoming resources ane recogniesd when the academy frust hes enfitiement to thie funds, the
raceipt 15 probable and the emourt can be messurad raliabhy.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continuad)

Granis

Grants ame inchsded in the Stelement of Financial Actrnlies on a recalvable basiz, Thae Balanca of
Incorna recaived for specific purposas but nol axpended durng the period s shown i the relevan
funde on the balence sheat. Where income i recehved in advance of maating  any
perfarmance-ralated conditions, thers & not uncondiional entilemeant & the income aad s
recognition s deferred and inchsded In creditors as deferred income undil the performance-ralsted
conditiang are mal, YWhare ardiflemant cocers before income is recaived . the income &8 aooad

Genaral Anmeal Grant is recognizeddn full In the Statemant of Financial Acthiities in the Yo fow ool
il = recesvabla and any abaterment; in:respect of the period is deducted from income and racconisad
a4 a liability.

Capital grants ara recognised in full whan there is an unconditional entiflernent to the cranl Unapanl
amounts of capilal grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fiked asset fund Caphal
grants are spent on capital prajacls in Bne with the terms and condtions of the grant, Capig’ orenis
ane recognised when thers 5 eotifernant and arm not deferred over the life of the saset an wiich thay
ane expandad,

The Acedemy Trust i3 benefiliing from DFE'S Fren School Programma, Tha funding loc s
programme (8 nol recognised as a capital grant urlil thare s unconditional entitlement from 2osts
being incwred, and the developmeni occunng on & sie where the Academy Trust conbiols ghoo s
ownarship, lease ar licance] the site where the development B8 occurmg. The aoe 2 s s
capitalised in aszats wnder construction untl the project is conplate,

Donations

Donations are recognised on arecaivable basis (whaera there are no perormance-redstas conoilion)
whare the receipt 5 probable and the amount can be reliably measwned,

Other income

Ofher income, including the hkeoof faclities, @ recognized n (ke padod | ig racaivable and o the
axtant the acadamy trust has provided the goods or aanvices.

Transfar on conversion

Where assets and Rabilities arg recelved by the academy frust on conversion to an acsdaermy, the
ransfarred assets are measured st fair valee and recognised in the balance sheet ai the painl when
the risks and rewards of ownarship pass lo the academy inesi An equal amount of incomsa s
recogrised 25 lransker on conversion within donalions end capital grant income fo the nal 23zels
revciivad

Transfer of axisting academies into the academy trusi

Where assels and liabilities are received on the fransfer of an existing academy info the academy
trusst, the transferrad net assets sre measursd at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet ot he
poaint when thie risks and rewards of ownership pass 1o he acadamy frust. An sgual amount of inconms
5 recognised for the transfer of an axisting acaderny inbo the academy frust within donations and
capital grent inconme to the net assets acguined,
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure s recognised once thers is a legal or constructive obligation {o transfer sconomic bemeli
tes @ thirgd party, It s probable thad & transfer of aconomic banafils will be required n sefllemant and the
amount of the obligation can be measured relisbly. Expenditure is classifiad by activity. The costs of
gach actiity are made up of the fobtad of direct costs and shared cosis, including Supporl costs
inwotved in undartaking aach acthity, Direct costs allnbutabla 1o a single aclivity ane allocated drecthf
to thal aclivity. Shared cosie which contibiute to more than ang activily and support costs which are
not attributable bo a single aclivily are apportioned bebween those activities on a basis cansistent wih
e use of resources. Ceniral staff costs are allocated on the basis of tma spart, and doprecation
charmges slocated on the porion of the assed's use, '

Al resaurces expended are inclusive of imecoverabls WAT.

Expenditisre on raising funds

This inchetes all expenditure Incurred by the academy tnest to ramse funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundrasing activities events and non-chasitable rading.

Charitable aclivifies

These are costs Incurrad on the academy trust's educational operations, including suppor cosls and
costs refating to the govemancs of the academny trust apportioned 1o charitable activities,

Tangibla fixed assats

Assels costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as fangible fixoed assels and are carmed at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acguired with
the aid of specific grants, either from the govemmesnt or from the private secior, they are included in
the Balance Shest al cost and depreciated ever their expected uvseful economéc life. Where there ara
spacific conditions attached to thi funding reguiring thi continued use of the assat, the related grants
are cradited to a restricted fixed assel fund in the Statement of Financial Aclivites and camed forseard
in the Balancs Shes! Deprecialion on the relavand assels is charged directly to the restricted fixed
asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as fo reduce the fund over the useful economic
ifa of the ralated assel on a basis consistent with the Academy Trust's depreciation policy., Whera
fangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricied funds, deprecialion on such assels is
charged o the unrestricted fund,

Depraciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and ssselts under
construction, at ratas caloutated bo write off he cost ol each assel over 15 expected useful lives, per
the table balow.

Aszets in the course of construciion are included af cost, Depracation on thase as3eis is not charged
writil ey ara brought into use and reclasstfed to freshold or leasehold land and bulldings.

A reviews Tor impakmenl al a fxed asset @ carried out f events o changes in circemstances indicats
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may nol be recoverable, Shortfalls between the carrying
valuo of ixed assals and their recovesable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impaisment
losses are recagnized in the Statemeant of Financial Activities,
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1 Accounting policies {continuad)

Asset class Crepreciation method and rate
Frashald land Mot depreciatad

Freehald bulldings 2% sraight ling

Leassehold land Mot depreciated

Leasehold buildings 2% siraighit lina

Furmiture and equepment 25% straight lna

Compuier equipment 25% straight ne

Muotor vehicles 25% siraight lne

AEsals under constrection Mal depreciated

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obdigation at the balance sheel date as a result of a pasi
avend, it is probable that & transfer of economic benafit will be required in seiflemeant, and the amouni
of the settlemsant can be estimated relisbly. Liabilities are recogrézed at the amount that the academy
trust snticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it hes received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it musi provide.

Provizions

Proagions are recognised when the academy frust has an obligation &t the eporting date as a resull
of a past evenl which L is probablo Wil resull in the Iransler of aconormic benefils and the obdigation
can be estimated raliakly,

Provisions are measured al the best estimate of the amounis requred 1o setlle the obligation, Whene
the effect of the lime value of money & material, the grovision s based on the present value of thase
amounts, discounied al the pre-tax discount rale thal reflects the risks specific o the Eability, The
ursinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and simdlar chierges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operaling leases are charged on a slrasghl-ding basis over the lease barm

Financial Instrumants
The academy trust only holds basic financiat instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets
and financial llabilities of the academy rust and their measurement basis are &s follows:

Finansial assals - rade and other debiors are basic fnancial instruments and are debl insirumenis
measured al amorisad cost as detailed in neta 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash al bank - i classibed a8 a base inancial instrument and s measured 3 face value,

Financial Hatdities - trade creditors, sccnials and olher creditors are financial instruments, and sne
measured at amonised cost as detailed in note 14, Taxation and social securty are not included in he
financial instrumeants disclosure defintion, Defarred incoma is not deemed to be a financial |&bility, as
the cash satilerment has aleady taken place and thers is an obligation to daliver sarvices rathar lhan
cazh or anathesr financial ingirumant,
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1 Accounting policies {continwed)

Taxation
The acadery frust is considerad to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance
Act 2010 and thersfore it meats the definition of a chartable company for UK corporation tax

Purnsees,

Accordingly, the academy brusl is polentially exemngd from taxation in respect of income or capital
paing recaived within categones covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Sct 2010 or
Seclion 266 of Ihe Taxation of Changeable Gaine Act 1892, to the extant thal such incoma o gains
are applied exclusivety to charitabla purposas.

Pension benefits

Ratiremani banefitls fo employeas of the Acedenmy Trust are provided by the Teachars' Pansgion
Scheme (‘TPSY and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are delinad banseiit
schemes

The TS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated 1o spresd thi ot of pensions over
omployvess' warking livas with the Acadenvy Trusf in such a way that the pensson cosl s a
subatanbally bevel percentage of cument and fulure pensionabde payroll, The confributions are
determined by the Gowernment Actuary based on quadrennial valiations using a progpeclive uni
cradil mathod. TPS & an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underdying assels to assign
bewean employers, Congeguentty, the TPE s treated as a defined contribution  schame for
accouenting purposas and the contributions recognisad in the panad {o which 1hey relate

The LGFE s a funded muli-employer schama, and the assels are held separately fram Ihose of the
fcademy Trust in separate frustes administered funds. Pension scheme assats am measured at falr
value and liabilitas sre measured on an acluarial basis using the projected unit credit mathad and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the currert rale of relum on @ high-quality corporata bond of
equivalent term and currancy (o labiiies, The achearial valuationg are oblained at least mennialy
and are updated at each balance sheal dale, The amouwnts charged o net incomaexpenditure} ars
the current service coste and the costs of schame introductions, banafil changes, setlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of siaff costs as mourmed. Mel interest on the net defined
benefit liabilitylassel s alko reacognised in the Stalement of Financial Activities and compeses the
interest cost on the defined hensfit obligation and interest income an the schama assels, calculaled
by miuflipldng the fair vabes of the echeme aasets at the begnning of the period by the rale used o
discount the bensfit obfigations. The difference betwaan the imerest income on he scheme assels
and the actual return on the scheme asseds | recognesed in other recognized gaina and losses.

fcivarial gaine and losses are recognised immaediately in other recognised gains and losses,

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds reprasent those resources which may be used (owards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discration of the Trusiess

Resiricted fived asset funds sre resources which ara bo be applisd o specific capiial perposes
imposed by the funders, whare the assel acqulned or created s held for a spedfic purpose.

Resiricled ganeral Tunds comprise all other restrcted funds recelvad with restrictions imposed by the
turdenidonar and Include grants from the Department for Education.
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1 Accounting policies (eontinued)

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgemants are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factars, inchueding expectalions of Tulure @vents that are belleved o be reasonable under the
clreumestancas.

Critical accownting estimafes and assumplions

The Acadamy Trust makes estimates and goaumpbons conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and azsumptions will, by definition, saldom egqual the relaled acusl msilts, Tha
eslimates and sssumplions that have a significant risk of causing a mabirial adjustmen to the
carrying amounts of asseds and Babilies within the next financiad vear are discussed balow.

Local Govarnmeni Pension Schemea

The presant valsa of tha Local Govermment Pension Schame dafined benalil mbilily depends on a
number of factors thal are determined on an acluanal basis using a varely of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the nel cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
chamges in thase assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carmying amounl af the
pension liabilly, Fudhermorg a roll fopsand approach which projects resulls from: the latest full
aciuarial valualion performead at 31 March 2022 has bean used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
Rability &t 39 August 2028, Any differences babwesan the figures derved from the rofl foreard approach
and & full Botuanal vabeaton wouwld impact on the carmyng amounl of the pansion by,

Ae at 31 August 2025, the actussal valuation for thie Trust includes a surplus ©dalling £8,717.000 (PY:
surplus of 1,534,000) . This surpius has not been recogrised wihin the financial statemanis

High LK corporate bond vields have resulted in high accounting discount rales which contributed fo
the cloaing surplus position. Thare & no specfic gukdance in FRS 102 In redalion to surpius balances,
therafore refarence: Has Deen made 10 1AS 19, This requires any surpdus recognition fo b imited o
the presenl value of economic benafits awallabba In the form of either refunds or redeced future
coninbutions (the asset cailing),

The dghi b0 a refund would ocour in the formn of & credil payvabée to the Trust, for exarmpls on exiting
thet pension fund, Whather any refund s provided ie governed by Regulation 64 of the 2013 Local
Govemment Peasion Schame Regulations and sat cut in the specihic local aulthorily funding stratedy
etatament. The paymenl of this credil is a1 the discreton of the leoal suthority based on a variety of
pre-determined factors. Glven thera are no circumstances to swggest an ext from the fund and the
datarminetion of any cradit is culside the conird of the Trusl there s no besis 1o recognige any
surplus.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policles (continwed)

With regards 1o reduced confributicns, 185 19 references minimum funding requirerments used Ly
cartain schemes which imit the scope for contribution reductions. The LGRS administaring aulharily
rmust obtain a rates and sdjustmants cedificate every thres years thal shows the confibutions 1o ba
paid by sach smpioyer to the pension fund for tha following three years, thereby limiting the
availability of any contibution reductions. Additicnally, tha local suthonty funding strategy statamsent
provides for potantfiaé reductions in fulure contribufions. bul hese swould De al the discrellon of the
Incal authorily with, in the majorly of cases, academies being part of a stabilisation approach which
sels a fimif an any changs o conbributions e.g. 1o 1% of pay per year. This suggests minimum funding
requibraments are applicable to the Trust Bs daterminad by AS19. When actuary asset cailing
caloulabions assume that minimum funding requirements axisl, they provide an assel eelling vaiue of
ENE,

Based on the above, it cannol be determinsd that @ fow of fulure benefits is probable heretore no
assat has besn recognised.

Agency accounting

The Academy Trust acis &3 an agent in distributing 16-19 bwesary funds from the [HE. Paymanis
recaived from the DfE and subsequent disbursements o shedenis are excluded from the slatement of
financial activilies a5 the Scademy Trus! does not have confrof ower the chanitable application of the
funds, The Academy Trusl can use up to 5% of the allocation lowards (ks own administration costs
and this = recognised in the statement of financial actvites. The funds received and paid and any
balances held are disciozed in nobe 27,

2 Deonations and capital granis
Restricted Restricted

Unrastricted General  Fixed Asset 2024/25 2324
Funds Funds Funds Total Total
£ £ E £ E
Other veluntary
Income
Capltal grania - - 3,265 350 3,285,350 5,585,075
Other donaticns B0 327 4. 893 - 135,220 106,753
Donated fixned
assals . . 4 958 000 O 458 000 -

B0 327 54,853 13,223,350 13,356,570 5,671,624
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3 Funding for the Academy Trust’s charitable activities

Educational Operations

DIEIESFA revenue grants

General Annual Gran

1619 Core Educalion Funding

CEBRG

Pupil Premium

TPECG

MEAL

LIFSM

Othar HE/ESFA grants
Cther DIE Groug grants

Other government
grants

Local authorty grants
Othar Goyarnmant grants

Mon-government
granis and other incomea

Cataring
Dther Incoms
Wiraparound care

Total grants

Unrestricted Hestricted Total Total
funds funds T024TE5 202324
E E £ £
- 51917479 51,917,479 48 241 661
- 25914 302 2914 302 2848 824
- 1,873,594 1,873,999 -
2,832 633 2632 633 2,604, 208
- 1,245 563 1,249 557 ava. 606
- - q,703, 412
- 2584 260 294 BEl 298,280
- 2,000, 321 2.000.321 2,703,000
2,400 - 2,400 .
2400 62 BR3, 157 62 BAS 557 a6, 078,023
- 2 803 385 2,803 955 2,854 (57
- S0, 836 30,856 3,231
- 2,834 825 ZRI825 2862 284
1.08% 458 . 1,081,458 1.036,897
1,860,434 405437 2,255 921 18042 705
294 ARG . 204 BES 287 508
3,225 a7 405 437 3,632 244 3267110
3,220 207 66,123,418 59,352 626 66,207,421
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4 Other trading activities

Unreatricted 2024)25 2021524
Fumds Total Total
£ 3 E
Hire of facilibes 309,148 308,148 246,318
Incomee from ancillary trading aclivites 140,048 140,048 128,240
Cithar trading imcomes A3.927 63,927 34,365
Income from ather charitable activities 44 674 44,674 AT B15
557,797 BET 787 446 534
5 |Investment incomea
Unrestricted 2024725 2023034
Funds Tatal Total
E £ E
Shoet tarm deposits 203,909 203,909 89,140
6 Expenditure
Mon Pay Expenditure
2024525 2023124
Staff cosls Pramises  Other costs Total Total
£ E F 3 £
Expenditure on
raising funds
Allocated suppart
costs (179,219) 142 825 (36,594) 158,071
Academy trust's
aducaticnal
opearations
Diract cosls 45 B5T 073 5473167 52,130 240 49,814 919
Allocatad sugpart
costs 7477 138 9,211,017 3 842 515 20,530 670 20,243 872
E4.134, 211 4,031,708 9458307 72,824,318 70,214 962
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6 Expenditure [continued)

ket incomafiexpenditiere) for the year includes:

Operaiing laase rantass

Depreciaion

Fees payable o auditor - audit

< OilFur A G g

(Gainoss on dispasal of ixed asseals

¥ Chartable activitles

Dirpct ¢osts - aducational operations
Support eosis - educational operations

Enalysis of support cosls
Support staff coste
Depaecation

Tachnology cosks
Premises casls

Lapal costs

Cither support costs
Governance costs

Tolal suppan costs

2024725 2023524
E £
AR5, 504 381,665
3,669 675 3,393,901
25,565 31,890
T.310 2080
- {5.000)
Total Total
2024125 202324
E E
52,130,240 49314 919
20,530,670 200,243 472
i 660,910 T 058,881
Educational Total Total
oparations 2024125 2023/24
E E E
TATT 138 7477138 TAd4n4dia
3,660,874 3,660 874 3,393,901
717,808 17 804 7924348
5,541,143 5,541,143 5,405,189
26,016 26016 a81.48s
3,039, 180 3,039 180 3,075 202
59.510 23510 a7 287
20,530,670 205306870 20,243,972

Page 59



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2025 (continued)

B Staf

Btaff cosis and employes benefits

Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salarles

Social sacurity costs
Qparating costs of dafned baneBl pansion schames

Supply staff costs
Slaff mesiniciuring costs

Stalf restructuring costs comprize:
Redundancy paymeants

Soverance payrmeanis

Severance payments

The academy frust pald 12 saverance payments in the yea disciosed in the following bans:

0 - E25, 000
Speclal staff severange payments

2024/25 202324
E £
28,550,145 37 &g 073
4522349 3.623,207
9,457,223  B70T.781
52,538,607 50,466,047
1,173,564 1,158,814
421,960 536,504
54134211 52161358
2024/25 2623124
£ £
364216 ahE, gl
57,744 70,158
e RN, b
2024/25 oz
£ £
12 10

Included in stafi resfructuring costs are special saverance paymenis Iotslling £57,704 (2024:
ET0,158). Indnaduatly, the paymants ware: £12,294, £5 472, EB 197, EA 181, B4, 453, E4 100, £3.534

E3,340, E2,081, E1,996, E1 and £1
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8 Staff (continued)

Staff numbears

The average number of parsons (inchluding sarsor management team) empicyad by the Acadermy
Trust during the year expresaed a3 headoount was as follows:

2024425 F023/24
Mo Mo

Charitabla Activities
Teachars 591 698
Administration and suppor S58 607
Managemen B 1%
1,155 1.224

Higher paid staff

The number of employess whose amployes benefits (excluding employer pansion costs and smployar
maticnal insursnce cosls) exceadec B0 000 was

2024126 202324
Mo, No,
RO 001 - E70,000 did 34
£70,001 - £80,000 14 19
£80,001 - £80,000 10 7]
£20,001 - £100,000 5 2
£100.001 - £110,000 - 2
£910.001 - £120,000 3
£120,00% - E130,000 1
F£140,001 - £150,000 - i
£150,001 - £160,000 1 -
£970,001 - E180,000 - 1
Onnar £200.000 i -

The employss in the over 2200 000 category above is in the banding £290,000 - £220,000,
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8 Stal (continued)

Staff numbers

The awerage number of perscas (including senior managerment leam] employed by he Acadermy
Trust during the yéar expressad as full lime aguivalents was as follows:

202425 2023124

Mo Mo

Teachers RaT ha2
Auderrin ATh 404
Manageamenl 10 18
a2z |59

The key managemenl personnal of tha Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the executive
managemant leam as listed on page 1. The tolal amount of key managameant personnal benefits
sncluding ermployer pengion conlributions and employver national insurance contebubions) moaived by
kay managemenl parsonned for their senicas to the Acadamy Trust wes £1446251 [2024:
E4.331,8200. The Trusl altered the composilian of the execdive management team during the wear
and former Hesde of Schools are no longer ncluded.

9 Caniral services

The Acadamy Trust has provided the following central services 1o its academias during tha year
= Schood Improvamant sugpor

* Finange and administrabion

= T Bervicas and saflwara

* Payrall and HR

= Hasalth & safaly estalos managemant

= Leadarship managemen

= Safllemant of oihar sharaed cosls

- Secretanial

The Academy Trust charges for these sanvices on the following basis:

Tha full costs of tha provision of central sarvicas, nat of income receivad cantrally, is racharged o tha
académies proporiionally @ & fal rate of 5.2% (2024 5.2%) of GAG mcome with an addittonal 1.2%
(2024: 12%) for pimares for IT Support and 1.75% (2024: 04%) for secondaries and school
Imprevemant supporl.
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9 Cenftral services (continuad)
The actual amounts charged during the yaar were as follows!

2024125 2023124
E £
Penrice E26,440 445,930
1 Mewan 121,261 115,516
Carclaze 115,245 108,830
Mavagissay 47,109 45,034
Foway 48 531 46176
Liostwithied 52,204 a,624
Lisaslyan 35,378 M4
Mownt Charles 117,236 113,181
Poltair 414 248 277928
Mewguay Trethermas T40,838 524,516
Mowrguay Junos 145,760 143,122
Brannal 438,362 300,519
Fandhu 61,124 &4, 8901
Mewguay Primary 36,762 26,521
Bodmin Collega 721,143 520,479
Porl isasc 20,320 21,639
3,738,125 2 850 445

10 Related party transactions - Trustees’ remuneration and expanses

Mo Trusiess hawe been paid rermunaralion of has moeivsd ather baneils Trom amploymeant wilh e
Academy Trusl The principal and ofher stall Trustees only receive remuneralion In respect of
sarvices hay provide underiaking the roles of principal and staff members under lhes conbracts of
amplaymant

During the year ended 31 August 2023, fravel and subsistence expenses iofalling EG35 (2024 - EMil)
wara relmbursed of pald directly to 2 trustess (2024 - 0.
Crthear related party transactions invalving the Truslees are set out in note 26

11 Trustees” and officers’ insuranca

In accordance with normal commaercial practice tha Acadermny has ]:Lm:hasud insurance & protect
governars and officars from claims arising fram negligent acts, arrars or amissions ocgurring whilst an
Acadamy business. The msurance provides cover up fo £5000.000 on any ome claim. For the
2024/25 year the iofal vales for Covernors pramiums was E229 {«1PT) (2024 - £289 (+IPT)L

Tha cost of (s insurance is included in fe bolal insurance cost
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12 Tangible fixed assets

Fraahold Lessehold Furnitura
lend and land and and Computer Motor 2024/25
buildings  buildings equipment eguipment vahiclas Total
L £ E £ £ £
Coxzt
M 1 Sapterabar
S024 o ral B3 By U05¥, 650 3. 58T a47 4 442 T16 190,083 128,060 266
fals sl gh 11,770, 25 R T JE2 A=Y f0d 573 127 4200 13,878,337
Disposais [1LET0) = - 110,310
A1 31 Augus
2025 54,502,060 GF.B61,333 5060084 5147268 7,523 141,268,293
Depreciation
Al 1 Septamber
224 5055143 8,966,166 ETIT4ES 3,118,038 108,463 20,285,276
Charga for i
yaar 1,168 453 1177, 458 615 Tr5a3 G708 3 6E3878
Efimisralid 0o
et il o QLR ) - - (10,310
A3 Augu=
2025 pas P I s f.F _"':'_ L | 3,583 960 170,229 11544 840
Mat ook ylus
A3 Augag
U2k ST 3TA.4TR  BOe10.058 745,293 1,253,319 147,294 117,843,451
A 31 Augus:
2024 46,776,650 58,701,524 BE0 481 1,324 677 81,620 107,734,990

The fcadamiy Trust's trenssciicn: relzling to land and buldings inchedad:

Tha scouesiticn of the frechald on Nowguay Primesy Academy which was donated to the acadamy

frust al m walus of £9.958m
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13 Debtors
2025 2024
E &
Trade debtars 145 404 203,649
Prepayments 738,257 7RO 416
Aecrped grant and athar Income 1,053,405 1,768,421
VAT recoverabda 454 3249 429,061
Cither debtors 23 462 12,120

2 412947 3,202,667

14 Creditors: amounta falling due within cne year

2025 2024

E E

Trade creditors 1,019 655 1,337,308
Citar baxation and social secunly 1. 115822 355,030
Dilhar craditars 1,193,656 1,072,153
Loans 83,574 75,855
Aecrsls A58 014 Q27 K32
Dafarrad incomie a49 320 475,028

5,110,045 4,744,206

225 o4
£ E

Dufarred incoma
Crafeerrad incorme al 1 Seplember 2024 476 028 456,250
Respurces deferred @ the pariod 240 320 476 024
Arsounls released from pravioes parods (476,028 {458, 260
Dreferrad income st 31 August 2025 B48,320 476024

Al the balance sheel date the Acadessy Trust was holding funds recelved in advance for UIFSM
granis, ather OfE grants and trip income received in advanca.
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025 (continued)

14 Creditors: amounts falling dus within one year (continued)

Laans

Loans af £61,129 from Sallx which |s provided on the following terms: 5 years, 0% interast.
Loans of E2 445 fram Salix which is provided on the following terms: & years. 0% inberast
Loans of EMI from CIF which (s provided on the following ferms: 10 years, 2.28% Interest.

15 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

2025 2024
£ £
Loans 08,755 174,332

Loans of £55 088 rom Salix which is provided on the illowing ferms: & years, 0% interaest,
Loans of E3.66T from Balix which i previded on tha fallowing tanms: B yvaars, 0% inberast
Loans of EMil fram CIF which is provided on the following tarma: 10 years, 2.29% inarsst |
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2025 (continued)

16 Funds

Rastricted general funds
Genaral Annual Grand
Pupil Premium

PE & Sporis Grand
Donations

Unirarsal mfant free school
meals

Raies reksf

Taachars pay & pension grant
Qithesr DHE

Cither LA grans

Cibwar restricted funds

16 = 19 Cone Education
Funding

School Led Tutoring

Restrictad fixad asset funds

Fixed assais translamed an
COMETEIonN

Fixed asssts purchasad from
Gz

Canditian mngroverment fund
Sehool condilicn allosation
L& capital funding

Healthy pupd capilad funding
Devotved formula capifal
Privala sactar capital
sponsarship

Academias Capital
bdaintenance Fund

Oither restricted funds
Daonated Fixed A=sseis

Connect the Classroom
Funding

Balance at Gains,

1 Ioszes  Balance al
September and 31 August
2024 Income Expenditure  transfers 2025
£ E £ E E

11,516 51917478 (53,300637) 1,703,556 6225914

- 2632633 (2832833) - =

. 128,160 [198.160) - -

29,709 54,802 |37 B74) (10, GAT) 36,137

. 294 8260 (204 BBO) -

- 05,812 (305.812) -

- 2130561 (2.130.561) - -

6458  2515TE6 (2517 .506) (4,629) -
179,441 2803989 (2.953.650) - 29,580
11,602 436,271 (436 260) 11,815

- 2914302 (2914302} . -

- (26,415 26,415 -

B3BB1T  66,17E312 (677851307 1,778,247 700,246
B5.6ER.D0Z - {1,768 501) 84 100,401
d 674,584 - (532,78.3) 253,351 5,095,157
1,844,187 - (41, 865) - 1,802,532
7041986 2,298,245  (385180) (520.272) 8434773
G B4E 659 643592 (208 486) (46,065) 7,236,800
3z.527 . {T46) - 31,781
607,526 204470 (119,732)  ({118,065) Br4.218
267 580 i1.857) {63,418) 131,943 324,644
1,493, 149 . [38,704) - 1454445
541,421 120,801 {83 618) {16,888) 562,806
8,958,000 (499,160} = B, T6E 840

584 446 . (238 BE4) 345,562

Page 87



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2025 (continued)

16 Funds [continued)

Restricted pansion funds
PRrSan mseng

Testal reeslricted funcs

Unresiricted funds
Unresirictad ganeral unds

Total funds

Balance al Gains,
1 losses Balance af
September and 31 August
2024 Income Expenditure  transfers 2025
E E E E £
109,823,382 13,223,350 {3698 487T) 384 114 119,731,969
536,000 (536,000
110,362,198 T.401.662 (FO958,007) 1,626 361 120,432,215
4,930,252 4,071,240 (1,066300) (2,162361) 4,180,862
114,500,491 B3 A4T2902 (72,624,318) [536,000) 124,813,077
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2025 (continued)

16 Funds {(continwed)

Festrictad ganarsl fumds
Gurardd Anpus=d Srant

Pupll Framar

PE & Sposts Gaoe
Caonations

Linivarsal fvfars Tree school
magls

Rates ralaef

Taachers pay & ponsion grant
Ithar GlE

Cihvier LA grants

Civar rasimz = funn

16 - 18 Crve Eoicafon
Funtling

KaAa

Cithinr DHE amo-18 Fomding
Schom Led Tulseang
Pessovesy Frondum

restricted fed as=ai fur<s

Fixed assata manafemed on
SENYVEITEAGm

Fixed assets purchiased from
GAG

Condition iaprovement fund
Schonl congition allocation
LA capital funding

Heallhy pupd cenital funding
Davalved formula capital
Privale seclor capital
sponsarship

Academies Capltal
baintenance Fund

Oher restnicted funds
Danabed Fisked Assels

Balance at Gains,

1 losses  Balanca at
Saptaimiber and 31 August
LhEE Incoine Expenditure transfers 2024
£ E £ E £

FaREas 44972416681 {51,281,028) 1.504.4926 311,518
2404206 (2,604, 206) - -

1507 186,080 {212.077) - -
10,639 40,918 (21,816 - 24, THd

- 2HE,280 {288,280 - -

- 521,625 {521,625) E

o 1455422 (1,455422) - -

112,042 456,112 {561,671) . 6,450

ST Ts0  Za350057 (2,737 .366) = 178,441
25,553 0,152 {353,873) - 11,802

- ZUNEEDM (2948824) - .

105412 (170348

- 25,400 {25,400 - -

- 0OF, TdiE (88, 746 P

" - A2RETD {526, 275) - %
B45.762 63318148 (B5321,010) 1.504.826 B3B.B1T
&7 5BE 947 - {1,798 085) - B588R1 402
4,305,338 - 525,060 BO4.203 4,574,589
1.B50,383 - (48 836) 42640 1,844,147
B.A4GA331 1,740,740 (315,086)  {224.068) 7,041,988
4367066 2,713,825 (178,074) {B5458) B 545,659
33,273 L, {746) - 32,527
600,947 203,385 (85,308) {111,544 607,526
167,371 163,266 156,564) (7.003) 26T, 080
1,531,853 - (36, 704) = 1,483,149
418,429 205,234 {43414)  [129B828) Bd1,421
64,251 - 184,251) - -
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2025 (continued)

16 Funds {cantinuad)

Connacl the Classraom
Funding

Restricted pension funds
Pension resarns

Todal restricted funds

Unrestrlcted funds
Linrestrcted general funds

Todal funds

Balance at
1
Saptember
2023 Income Expendifure
£ £ £

375,708 4768 | (ades

Gains,
losses Balance at
cotvand 31 August

transférs 2024
3 £
554 446

107,273,347 5,585,075 -[3.333_901:'

A7B,B61 103823 382

Ja3.000

(393,000)

108220109 68883223 (68,321,920

dITIMT 0 SN T [1,A83.047)

1,580,787 110,362,198

41,973 787 3958252

112,493,536 72,414 527 (70,214 B63)

(393,00 ] 318 300 251
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16 Funds [continued)

The specific purpcses for which the funds are to be applied are a3 follows:

General Annual granl = Fundimg receised from Ehe DIE for the ongoing provisson of ecducalional
servicas and usad for ganaeral running costs of the Trest including education and support costs.

Pupil Prermium = Funding received from the DIE for the specific purposes of raising the attainment of
digadvantaged pupils and coging ho gap wilh heir pears, and suppoding children and yourdg peaple
with parents In the regular armed forces.

FE & Sporis Grant — Funding received from the DfE in order 1o improve (he gueality of physical
education and sport proviséon in primary schoals i England.

LIFEM — Funding received from the DFE in order 1o allow 3l infant stage pupils to banafil from frae
schood meals,

Rates Reliel — Funding received from the OME in order 1o mesl fhe costs of Trust natanal
non-domestic rates (MMOR)

Teacher Pay & Pension Granis — Funding received from the DFE for the specific purpose of allowing
schoots to meet the revised pay and pension requirements of teaching ataff.

1619 Com Educabon Funding - This represents funding raceiad from he DIE 10 suppor 16-19 study
programmas

Cihar DIE Covid-18 funding — Funding raceivad from the DFE to supparl other aspacts of e affect of
Cewid-19 swech as addibonal costs for providing frea school meals o pupils during the pesod of
allendancs restrictions

Recovery Premium funding - Funding received rom B DIE to suppor pupss whose educabton has
been impacted by coronavirus (COWID-19)

School Led Tutoring - Funding received from the OfE to provide tuloring intervention to support
caich-up for loat education due to the coronavirus {COVID-19) pandamic.

Cither DIE = Funding recehvad rom the DME for othes msircted purposes

LA Grants — Funding recsived from the Local Authodly far vanous resticlsd purposes such as SEM
proviskon, axceplonal pupil growth and nursery provisson,

Rastricted fixed asset fund - This fund includes the net book valus of tangible fized assets acguired
with resfricted capital funding, iogether with unspent capital granis to be used for fulure capital
expandifure. Depreciation on funded asseals is charged 1o fhis fund
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2025 (continued)

16 Funds {comntinwead)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2025 wane allocated as follows:

Pasnircg

Paltair

Meawguay Trathamras
Brannal
Mewguay Junlor
5t Mewan
Carclaze
Mavagissey
Foweay

Lestwilheed
Luanisbyan

Moust Chiarlis
Fondhu
Mewguay Pnmary
Bodmin Colkege
Parl lsaac
Cantral sarvices

Total bafora ixed assels and ﬂanah::n ngsEnG
Restricted fixad assat fund
Fenson resene

Total

The academy irust B nol subpect o GAG camled foraand lmita

2025 2024

E £

341 BAE, 700
1,125 408,055
30,021 1,510,895
16,2596 J74.958
6,016 201,538
7460 43,052
T (59, 544)
28417 40,9538
1,564 (150413
1,000 50,522

- 54,413

6,548 125,204
38,920 180,171
2.548 185,626
7400 259,757
265 (10,271)

4, 728,406 A7E, 1949
4 BE1, 108 4477 104
118,731,969 109,823,362
124,613,077 114,300,491

During the financial year the Trust implamanied & resefves pooling palicy, Ay unspan! GAG and
unrestricted funds, for each academy, at aach year end will be transfarred fo the cantral service fund
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16 Funds (continued)
Total cosi analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy dunng the yvear was as fallows:

Taaching
and
educational Other
support support Other costs
staff staff Educational {excluding Total
costs costs supplies depraciation) 2025
E E £ £ E
Mewwquay Trelharas 8,641,023 1,239,751 903,092 1,502 470 12,866,336
Panrice 7,111,433 918,858 a0o 872 1,858 634 10,698,747
Brarnal 5,044 596 HE3, T34 491,527 1,346,785 ¥, 7E5,632
Faltair 4,301 481 Q80223 554,935 1444 295 ¥.290,934
Mount Charlas 1,589,522 132,823 201,655 446,288 2,370,388
Peewcpuny Juamior 1.843.812 211,558 159,069 4492 816 2,737 255
Carckaze 1,528,835 141,954 126,853 463,848 2,262,524
St Mewsan 1,766,626 278440 179,486 485730 2,699,202
Lostwithial 631,948 158,505 F4,488 263,078 1,178,017
Fiovany G52, 706 44,231 50,801 103,923 50 661
Mevagissey Bag,121 150,992 40,645 209 326 1,060,082
Luxulyan 498,990 38,668 47, 745 145,585 731,188
Mewsguay Primary f28,854 43,245 48,480 £35,580 857,154
Pondhu 985,613 118,496 155811 02,2681 1,575,981
Badmin Collegs 8,480,893 S50, 264 1,028,732 2,244 039 12,704,828
Fart Isaac 349,533 19,616 55,741 04,685 554 575
Cenlral senacas 1,948,082 1,159 450 403,435 [2 880,278} £30, 696
Acadamy Trust 46,657,073 T 477 134 5,473,167 B.347 063 68,954 441

Page 73



Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2025 (continued)

16 Funds {continued)

Comparalive information in respect of the preceding pericd & as follows:

Taaching
and
aeducational Othear
sunport BUpport Other costs
staff staff Educational jexcluding Total
oosls cosls supplies depreciatian) 2024
E E E E £
Mewquay Tratharras B1456,750 1,149,569 1,079,408 1,867,760 12,243 487
Panrice B 693 838 085 749 £58.834 1,702 571 10,240,290
Branned 4 564,883 a74,845 488,879 1,226,942 7,255 568
Postair 411,229 044 BZ8 496,088 1,300,445 5,852,590
Mount Charlas 1,623,481 126,892 117,364 484,788 2,352 503
Mewguay Junior 2,082,773 268,520 167 688 461,774 2,978,755
Carclaza 1,093,030 141,343 111,133 454 524 2,300,020
S Mewan 1,702,257 253,154 146,747 472,333 2574491
Losbwithasl GET, BTE 143,788 61,353 292,784 1,156,803
Foway &01,581 42 565 58.134 183,828 226,508
Mavagissey S8B, 231 47 542 45635 194,440 575,889
Lusidyan 470,578 43,784 65,084 145,978 725,444
Hewduay Primary 384,026 54,734 46067 158,715 Gk, 484
Paondhu 1,000,212 116,693 162,820 281 281 1,570,018
Baodmin Collega BETS B0 1052383 875,398 2244588  12.84E 343
Fart Isasc 423,250 DB 184 34,342 105, 146 (20,927
Central services 1,383,420 1427514 286,992 {2.003,673) 1,0BB, 253
Academy Trust 44,712,888 7830475 £, 102,037 9568667  &7.214,067
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17 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balancas af 31 August 2025 are represented by;

Restricted Restrictad
Unrestricted General  Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£ E E £
Tangibde fixed assets - 117,943,451 117,943,451
Currani assats 4,303,191 5,746,717 1,788,514 11,834,436
Currant iabilites (63,574) (5,046 471} = [5.110,045)
Craditors ovar 1 year {58, Ta6) - - (58, T55)
Tatal net assats 4,180 862 TOO245 118,731,969 124 613,077
Comparative indormation in respect of the precading paniod is as follows:
Restrictad Restricted
Unrestrictad General  Fixed Assat
Fuinds Funds Funds Total Funds
E £ E E
Tangibbe lixned assels - = 107,734 990 107,734,950
Ciurranl assals 4,124,195 5,207,168 2,152,676 11.484, 03249
Currand liabilities {63,574 {4,668 351) (12,281} (4,744, 2086)
Craditors over 1 year 122, 3H) - (52,003} {174,332)
Total nel assats 3,838,242 538,817 108,823,332 114,300, 481
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18 Long-term commitments, Including operating leases

Operating leases
Al 31 Augusl 2024 the todal of the acadamy trusfs fulire minimum lease paymants wunder
nan-cancellable operating leases was:

2025 2024

£ £
Amaunis due wishin one year 137,657 263,412
Amaunts due betweaen ong and five yaars 237 803 300,736
75460 S04, 148

Long-term commitments (other contractual eammitments)

Al 31 August 2025 the 1odal of the academy trusts future minimum payments under other confrachusd
commitments was:

225 2024
£ E
Amaunts due within one yaar 1,870,115 1,486,112
Amaunts due betwean one and five yaars 2 00 076 2828 651
3,810,791 & 424, TEL
19 Reconciliation of nat incomae to net cash flow from operating activities
2024725 2023/24
E E
Met incoms 10,846 586 £.1899 965
Depreciation 3,660,876 3.383,901
Capial grants from DfE and other capital incomea (3,265,351} {5,565, 075)
Donated capital {5,258 00} -
Interast recaivabie (203, 209) (B9, 140
Interast payable 32,462 28,981
Definad banefit pansion scheme cost less conlributione payables (A48, 00} {aB2, 000)
Dafined bansfit pension scheme finance cost {BE, GO0} (11,0000
Dacreasal(incressa) in debtors TEQ F20 (1,972 133)
Incraasa in craditors arg12o 234,804
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed asasts . (5, 00
Met cash provided by{used in} Oparaling Activities 1,755,504 [1,366,68T)
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2025 (continued)

20 Cash fiows from financing activities

Intarast payable
Rapaymeants of borrowing

Mt cash usad in financing activibies

21 Cash flows from Investing activitles

Dividands, Intarast and renls from investmenls
FPurchass of tangible fixed asssis

Procasads from =ale of tangible fixed assets
Capital grantz fram DIE Group

Met cash (used in¥peovicesd by investing activiliss

22 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash im hand and at bank

Toial cash and cash eguivalents

23 Analysis of changes in ned debt

Cash

Lowns falling dus within one year
Loans faiting due after more than one year

Taotal
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2024/28 202524
£ E
{32 482) (20.981)
(127 358) (126,174}
{160,320) {154, 185)
2024025 2023124
£ £

203 00 849,140
(3,820,337} 15,172,658)

- 5,000

3,265,351 5,565,075

(451,007} 486,550

2025 2024

E E

3425479 B.281,372

9425479 8.281.372

At

September At 31 August
2024 Cash flows 2025

£ £ £
8,281,372 1,144 107 0,425 479
8,281,372 1,144 107 8426 474
(75,855} 12.281 [G3.574)
{174,332} 115,577 {58, 755}
[250,187) 127,858 {122,329}
8,031,185 1,271,965 0303, 150




Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025 (continued)

24 pember liability

Each Member of the chantabla company undertakes 1o condribute 13 the assels of the company in the
avenl of f being wound up whida they are & Member, or within one year aller they cease to be a
Member, such amount as may be required, nol excesding £10, for the debis and Rabiies conlracted
before mey cessad 1o be a Membsar,

28 Penslon and simliar ablioationa

The Academy Trust's emphoyess belong 1o two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pensalon
Soheme England anpd VWeles (TPE) for acedemic and related staff, end the Local Goweammant
Pensian Bohome (LGPS) lor noa-lasdhing =laff, which & mansged by Gomwall Pansion Fund. Bolh
ara mulfi-employer defined banefit schomes.

Tha latest actuaral valuation of the TPS melated fo the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS
fi he period ended 31 Masch 2022

Coniibutiors amounding 10 £1,088 437 (2024: £1,013,587) werd payable Lo the schemes ab 31 August
2025 and ars included within creditors,

Taachers® Ponsion Schams

ktrodeection

Tha Taacker' Pengmon Schers [TPS) s a8 salutory, conbibidory, deflined benedll achemsa, qovermsd
by e Teachers' Penzion Scheme Regulstions 2014, Membership s sutomatic for teachars in
peadomy Luss Al beachors bave the option o apt-out of the TPS following enrolment

Tha TPS iz en unfunded schame fo which both the member and emplaysr makes conlributions, Be a8
parcentege of salary - thase conlrbutions ere credited to the Exchequer Retiremsnt snd other
pansion bensfils are peid by ouliic funds provided by Pafament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Penslon Scheme

Tha Govarnment Achsary, using normal acluanal pincples, condueds a farmal actuarial review of the
THS In accordance with tha Public Service Pensions (Waluations and Employer Cosl Cap) Directions
2074 published by HM Treasury avary 4 yaars The aim of the review s 1o ensure schame costs are
racofgnisad and managed approgrisbehy and b review spacifies the laval of fulure contributions.

Actuarial gehamsa valuations s dapandent on assumptions about the value of future cosls, degign of
bansfite and many other fastors. The latest actuanal valuation of the TPS was camed out as at 31
Blasch 2020, The vabuation reparl was published by the Department for Eduecation on 27 Octobear
2023, with the SCAPE rale, set by HRT, appldng a nollonal investmeant return based an 1,7% abhove
the rate of CPI,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)
The kay slements ol lhe valuallon cwlcome are

* Employer contribution rates sel at 28.68% of pensionable pay [including & 0.08% administration
levy]. This is an increase of 5% In emplover conmbubions and the cost control result i sech that no
change in member benelils = needad,

»  Todad schema liabilibas (pansions currantly n payment and the estimated cost of fulure benafits)
for semvice to the effective dale of E262.000 milion and nolionsl assels (estimated fulur
conrbadions togelher with the notional investiments hald at the valuation dala) of E222 205 million,
giving & notional past service deficit of £E30.800 millaen,

The resull of this valuation will be implemanted from 1 Agdl 2024, The nexdl valuation rezalt B due 1o
ba implemented from 1 Apal 2027,

The ermployer's pension costs paid 1o TPS in the pariod amountad to £7,518,750 (2024: £E.744,701).

A copy of the valuation repont and supporing documentation is on e Teachess” Pensions wabsile,

Under the definibons st out in FRS 102, the TPS i an unfunded rmwi-employer pension sohamme,
The academy irusl s unable bo hantly s share of tha endorlying assats and liabilibes of 15a plan,
Aocordingdy, the academy inest has taken advantage of the exemplion ih FRS 102 and has accounted
for s contributions to the schame as i it were a defined contributicn schame. The academy fnest has
sal oul above, the infermabion available on the schame,

Local governmant pension schems

The LGPS Is & funded defined benefil pengion scheme, wih the assets held = segarsie
trustee-administered funds. The iodal contribution made for the year snded 31 August 2025 was
E2.930 000 (2024 - £2981000) of which employers contribulions tofalled £2.297.000 (3024 -
E2.345000] and employses' coniributions totafied £633.000 (2024 - E636,000). The agreed
contribution rates for future years ame 21.5 per cent for employers and 55 - 125 per canl for
amployess.

Farlizment has agreed, at the requast of e Secratary of Stale far Education, ts a guarantas thal, in
the avanl of an academy brust closwra, owlstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme lisbilifies
waollld ba med by the Depariment for Education. Tha guaranted came info force on 18 July 2013 and
on 21 July 2022, the Departreent for Education reaffirmed s commitment 10 the guaranies, with a
pariamantany minute published on GOV LK,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2025 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continuad)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increasae in =alaries

Rafe of increase for pensions ;m paymentinfiation
Discount rate for scheme Eabilitias

Inflation asswmptions {CF1)

Commutation of pensions fo lump sums

2025
%
270
AL
610

2.
. e

2024
s

270
270
5.00

270
G000

The current mortably assumptions include sufficlent allowance for fubure improvements in the martality

ratas. The assumed life expeactalions on refirement age 65 ane:

Retiring loday
Males mitiving tocday
Femalos raliring foday

Retiring in 20 years
Males retining in 20 vears
Fermales retiring n 20 years

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Ciscouwnt rate -0,1%

1 year increass in life expectancy

1 year decraase in life expectancy

Pansion increase rale (CP1) = 0.1%
Fenslon increase rate (CP1) - 0.1%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the achems were:

Equities

Corporate bonds

Proparty

Cash and othar liquid asaets

Tatal market wvalue of assets

2025 2024
26580 20,60
23.80 23.90
21.10 20.80
2520 2510

At 31 August At 21 August
2025 2024

E E

631,000 -847,000
#31,000 847 000
1,262,000 1,444,000
1,262,000 -1,444,000
§31,000 838,000
631,000 836,000
2025 2024

£ £
25.575,000 22,585 000
12,375,000 12,045,000
2,475,000 2,259,000
825,000 753,000
41,250,000 37.642.000

The aciual return on scheme assels was £1,300,000 (2024 - £2,216,000).
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2025 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations [continued]

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

0z4i25 202324
£ £
Currant sanice cost {1,840,000) (1,243,000}
Pasl sarvice cost {20, 000)
Interest mcome 1,936,000 1,778,000
Interast cost {1,850,000) {1,767, 000}
Total armount recognised inthe SOFA {1,7&1,000) {1,852 000%
Amount recognised in the balance sheet 2024125 2023124
E E
Azsal 41,250,000 a7 g42,000
Asgsel cellng adusimeant 19, 710, 0000 (1,534,000}
Cioligation (31,539,000) (36,708 000)
Mat assatiEability) =
Changes in the present value of defined benefit abllgations were as lollows:
2024725 2023124
E £
A starl of pariod 36,108,000 32,143,000
Current sarvice cost 1,849,000 1,843,000
Interast cosl 1,650,000 1,724,000
Emplayes contributions 633,000 636,000
Actuarial [gam)loss (8,273 000} 175,000
Benafits pald {622 000) (533,0:00)
Past sandca cost - 20,000
At 31 Ausgust 31,539,000 36,108,000
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2025 (continued)

25 Pension and slmilar obligations [continued)

Changes in the fair value of Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

202425 2023724

£ £
Al slart of period AT 642 000 32,976,000
Interast ncomea 1,938,000 1,778,000
Actuarial galnifloss) (636, 0:00) 440,000
Employer comiributions 2,297,000 2,345,000
Empkayes conlributions 633,000 636,000
Benefils pald [EZ2, () 1533, 000)
Ak 31 dugees 41,250,000 A7 B4Z 000

The aszsel cap restiction has been recognised throogh an adjustmenl b the aclunal gainfloss
recognised. Far herlises dedail on the accounting traatmsant of this refar 1o Moda 1 - Critical accoounting

pslimates and assumplions

26 Related party transactions

Chwingg 0 the nature of the acadaemy nest and the composition of the Board of Trustess bsing drawn
from local publc and private seclor organisations, ransachions may ke place with organisations n
which the Trestess have an interest The following related parly transactions fook place in the

fiancial period,
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Cornwall Education Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2025 (continued)

26 Related party transactions [continued)

Expenditure related party transactions
During he year lhe scademy madas ihe folowing relsled party ransactions:

flrs L Mann

(L Mahn, spouss of A Mann, & frustso, (5 emploped by the academy trust as a leachar)

L Mann's sppointment was meda |noopen compadition and A Mann weas nol ineabesd 0 b
dacision-making procass recording aponoiniment. L Mara |5 paid within the normal pey scaiy for bar
rale and receives ro spacsl ealnmeal as 8 rasult of bear relationship o 8 trustes, In entenng info dswa
fransaction, fh academy (el ke compiled with tho roguiamants of the Academy Tt Handbock
2024, Al the pelance shesl dz'= e ool dus o V03 L Mann was EMI (2024 - EMILL

Mr 3 Glibari

|5 GEbart, son of J Bull, 8 member, was amployved by the scademy trust-as & teacher during thie yesr)
S Gilber's appoiniment was madae In open compatiton and J Bull was nat invalved 0 the desisian
making process regarding the appointment S GEbart s paid within tha normal pay acale for ihe roda
and raceives o speciad mestment a5 & result of his relafionship to & member. In entaring ‘oo the
fransaction, the academy trust has complied with the requiraments of the Acadaemy Trual Handbook
2024, At the balance shaet dats the amount due bo Mr 5 Gilbert waa EMIl (2024 - EM)

Alex Hobhs Garden Design

{Orunar of the suppliar is a8 paroor of ona of the haads of echool)

Thi Iranssetion relates o550 000l Gopendieme (20225 B4L,58T). In enioring into the teono cion, Bie
acagenny tnest has compliat wily de-raguimaimenis of the Academy Truel Harsdbooh 07, &) e
batance shes: data the amounl Sus o Aax Hoblbs Cordan Dazgn was ENI| {2024 - ERil)

2t Austell Fastival of Chidiwn's Literalure

{A-head of one of The schoolz i3 @ irustes of S Autel Festival of Chldren's Lileraiung)

The transaction related boo ENib expebdilure (2024 £1,648), In entaring Inte the benzscton, he
academy tnust has compliad with thairequeemeanis of the Academy Trusl Handbook =024, Al tha
balanca shaet dale e amourt dus b 51 Ausiell Festival ol Children's Lilerature wis ERi (2024 -
EMil)

27 Agency arraingements

The academy trust distributes 15-19 bursary funds to students as an agant for DIE. In the socounting
paricd ending 31 August 2025 the acadermy trust recaived E120 416 and disbursed ET3 448 from tha
fund. As at 31 August 2025, the cumulative utnspent 16-19 bursary fund is £73, 383, which relatas o
undistribuled funding that is repayable o DiE.

Comparabves for the accounting perod anding 31 August 2024 are £116607 received, E174, 197
disburaed and total cumutative unspent fund of £26 415 repayable to ESFA.
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